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To : Jordan Securities Commission ALt (315 A ol

Amman Stock Exchange

Subject : Financial Statements for the fiscal
year ended 31/12/2019
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Attached is the Financial Statements ( Arabic
& English) of Arab Jordan Investment Bank
for the fiscal year ended 31/12/2019,

after recieving CBJ approval to proceed in
issuing it.
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Kindly accept our highly appreciation and
respect

22
Arab Jordan Investment Bank
Chairmar/ Hani Al-Qadi
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Shareholders of Arab Jordan Investment Bank
Amman - Jordan

Report on the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Arab Jordan Investment Bank “Bank”
and its subsidiaries “the Group”, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards, are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Jordan, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter provided
in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

1. Inadequate allowances (ECL) for credit facilities

Refer to the note 10 on the consolidated financial statements

Key Audit matter 1 How the key audit matter was addressed
in the audit

This is considered as a key audit matter as the

group exercises significant judgement to Our audit procedures included the following:

'deter'mmetwhen and how much to record as e We gained an _understanding of the

impairment. Group's key credit processes comprising
granting and booking and tested the

The provision for credit facilities is recognized operating effectiveness of key controls

based on the Group’s provisioning and impairment over these processes.

Iplggcéygwhlch complies with the requirements of « We read the Group's impairment

provisioning policy and compared it with
the requirements of the International
Financial Reporting Standards as well as
relevant regulatory guidelines and
pronouncements.

Credit facilities form a major portion of the
Group's assets, there is a risk that inappropriate
impairment provisions are booked, whether from
the use of inaccurate underlying data, or the use
of unreasonable assumptions. Due to the
significance of the judgments used in classifying
credit facilities into various stages stipulated in
[FRS 9 and determining related provision
requirements, this audit area is considered a key
audit risk.

e We assessed the Group’s expected credit
loss model, in particular focusing on its
alignment of the expected credit loss
model and its underlying methodology with
the requirements of IFRS 9.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's gross credit * We tested a sample of exposures,
facilities amounted to JD 831,489,505 and the assessed on an individual basis and
related impairment provisions amounted to JD performed procedures to evaluate the
13,279,473. The impairment provision policy is following:

presented in the accounting policies in note (2) to
the consolidated financial statements.




EY

Building a better
working world

o Appropriateness of the group's
staging.

o Appropriateness of determining
Exposure at Default, including the
consideration of repayments in the
cash flows and the resultant
arithmetical calculations

o Appropriateness of the PD, EAD
and LGD for different exposures at
different stages.

o Appropriateness of the internal
raing and the  objectivity,
competence and independence of
the experts involved in this exercise.

o Soundness and mathematical
integrity of the ECL Model.

o For exposures moved between
stages we have checked the
appropriateness of the Group's
determination of  significant
increase in credit risk and the
resultant basis for classification of
exposures into various stages. We
also checked the timely
identification of exposures with a
significant deterioration in credit
quality.

o For exposures determined to be
individually  impaired we re-
preformed the ECL calculation we
also obtained an understanding of
the latest developments in the
counterparty’s situation of the latest
developments in estimate of future
cash flows, current financial position
any rescheduling or restructuring
agreements.

For forward looking assumptions used by the
Group in its Expected Credit Loss (“ECL")
calculations, we held discussions with
management and  corroborated  the
assumptions using publicly available
information.

We assessed the financial statements
disclosures to ensure compliance with
IFRS 9. Refer to the accounting policies,
critical accounting estimates and judgments,
disclosures of credit facilities and on ECL in
notes (2), (4), (10) and (44) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Other information included in the Group’s 2019 annual report.

Other information consists of the information included in The Group’s 2018 Annual Report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Management is
responsible for the other information. The Group's 2018 Annual Report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements

OQur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exist. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exist, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period, and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report, unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonable be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Bank maintains proper books of accounts which are in agreement with the financial
statements.

The partner in charge of the audit resulting in this auditor’'s report was Waddah Barkawi; license
number 591.

Amman, Jordan o -+
2 February 2020 M



ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

Assets

Cash and balances at Central Bank of Jordan
Balances at banks and financial institutions- net
Deposits at banks and financial institutions- net
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Direct credit facilities - net

Financial assets at amortized cost - net
Investment ih associate company

Property and equipment — net

Intangible assets - net

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Equity

Liabilities:

Banks and financial institutions’ deposits
Customers’ deposits

Borrowed money from the Central Bank of Jordan
Cash margins

Sundry provisions

Income tax provision

Other liabilities

Total Llabllltles

Equity:

Equity attributable to Bank's shareholders
Paid-up capital

Share issuance premium

Statutory reserve

Foreign currency translation adjustments
Fair value reserve — net

Retained earnings

Total Equity attributable to the Bank’s shareholders
Non — controlling interest

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and shareholders’ Equity

Notes 2019 2018

JD JD
5 129,085,610 121,539,096
6 291,440,677 307,520,994
7 24,845,110 15,877,685
8 1,203,192 263,244
9 20,059,841 15,506,988
10 815,472,923 752,694,569
11 711,618,433 688,023,173
12 20,687,223 19,011,340
13 76,478,738 74,301,592
14 1,606,866 694,005
21-D 521,215 540,846
15 39,036,563 37,116,887
2,132,056,391 2,033,090,419
16 619,641,241 537,381,551
17 1,092,286,339 1,030,562,047
18 104,457,503 146,041,810
19 40,295,933 38,991,293
20 677,572 606,874
21-A 7,334,878 6,866,156
22 51,510,179 57,242 485
1,916,203,645 1,817,692,216
23 150,000,000 150,000,000
24 s 1,418,000
25 33,212,083 31,447,469
26 (2,955,229) (3,596,397)
27 (2,067,878) (1,891,990)
28 18,501,288 17,479,705
196,690,264 194,856,787
30 19,162,482 20,541,416
215,852,746 215,398,203

2,132,056,391

2,033,090,419

The accompanying notes from (1) to (62) constitute an integral part of these statements and
should be read with them.



ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK
(A PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
F_OR THE YEAR ENDE_D 31 PECEMBER 2019

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Net commission income

Net interest and commissions income

Foreign currencies income

Loss from financial assets at fair value through profit or Loss
Cash dividends from financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income
Other income

Gross income

Employees expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Other expenses

Provision for impairment
Sundry provisions

Total expenses
Bank’s share in the income of associate company

Profit for the year before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Bank’s shareholders

Non — controlling interest

Basic and diluted earnings per share from profit for the year (bank’s

shareholder)

The accompanying notes from (1) to (52) constitute an integral part of these statements and

Notes 2019 2018
JD JD

31 97,344,275 90,353,940
32 (53,885,589) (46,012,013)
43,458,686 44,341,927
33 8,255,755 8,289,626
51,714,441 52,631,553
34 3,894,727 3,747,495
35 (146,654) (43,568)
36 206,501 268,424
38 1,495,849 1,178,117
57,164,864 57,782,021
39 15,963,637 16,232,941
13, 14 3,866,219 3,030,943
40 12,272,401 12,426,711
37 2,263,954 1,424,673
15 & 20 167,398 551,070
34,533,609 33,666,338
12 1,034,715 280,739
23,665,970 24,396,422
21-B (7,462,731) (7,580,095)
16,203,239 16,816,327
14,871,803 15,506,052
1,331,436 1,310,275
16,203,239 16,816,327

JDfFils JD/Fils

41 0.099 0.103

should be read with them.




ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Profit for the year
Comprehensive income items:

Other comprehensive income items which will be reclassified to profit or loss
in future periods:

Foreign Currency translation adjustments - Associate Company

Other comprehensive income items which will not be reclassified to profit or
loss in future periods:

Cumulative change in fair value of financial assets through comprehensive
income - net after tax

(Loss) from the sale of financial assets through comprehensive income
Total other comprehensive income items for the year after tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Bank's shareholders
Non - controlling interest

The accompanying notes from (1) to (52) constitute an integral part of these statements and

should be read with them.

2019 2018
JD JD
16,203,239 16,816,327

641,168 (1,217,177)
(138,883) (336,594)
(3,606) (4,799)
498,679 (1,558,570)

16,701,918 15,257,757
15,333,477 14,065,898

1,368,441 1,191,859
16,701,918 15,257,757
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For The Year Ended 31 DECEMBER 2019

Notes 2019 2018
JD JD

Operating activities
Profit before income tax 23,665,970 24,396,422
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 13, 14 3,866,219 3,030,943
Provision for impairment 37 2,263,954 1,424 673
Unrealized loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 35 231,039 47,995
Provision for End of service indemnity 20 59,398 38,070
Provision for seized assets 15 - 513,000
Other sundry provisions 20 108,000 -
Gain from sale of property and equipment 38 (4,551) (5,530)
(Gain) loss from the sale of seized assets 38 (74,045) 49,367
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents 34 (80,558) (196,432)
Bank's share in the income of associate company 12 (1,034,715) (280,739)
Cash profit before changes in assets and liabilities 29,000,711 29,017,769
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions (maturing over 3 months) (8,967,425) 602,257
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (1,170,987) (141,849)
Direct credit facilities (64,949,808) (2,790,696)
Other assets (2,381,546) (4,174,213)
Banks and financial institutions deposits (maturing over 3 months) (27,164,000) 40,000,000
Customers' deposits 61,724,292 (20,153,614)
Cash margins 1,304,640 (20,701,751)
Other liabilities (8,351,335) 45,693,968
Net change in assets and liabilities (49,956,169) 38,334,102
Net cash flows (used in) from operating activities before taxes and sundry
provisions paid (20,955,458) 67,351,871
Sundry provisions paid 20 (96,700) (1,355,146)
Income tax paid 21-A (6,974,378) (8,107,925)
Net cash flows (used in) from operating activities (28,026,536) 57,888,800
Investing activities:
Financial assets at amortized cost - net (23,681,760) (90,574,098)
Sale of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (4,701,342) (1,031,241)
Purchase of property and equipment 13 (2,983,411) (3,449,558)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment and intangible assets 21,478 12,299
Purchase of intangible assets 14 (842,665) (273,220)
Net cash flows (used in) investing activities (32,187,700) (95,315,818)
Financing activities:
Borrowed money from the Central Bank of Jordan (41,584,307) 145,880,388
Change in non—controlling interest (2,747,375) (1,240,750)
Dividends distributed to shareholders ' (13,492,133) (13,427,397)
Net cash flows (used in) from financing activities (67,823,815) 131,212,241
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (118,038,051) 93,785,223
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents 80,558 196,432
Cash and cash equivalent - beginning of the year 11,716,854 (82,264,801)
Cash and cash equivalent - end of the year 42 (106,240,639) 11,716,854

The accompanying notes from (1) to (52) constitute an integral part of these statements and

should be read with them.



ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
31 DECEMBER 2019

1. GENERAL

The Arab Jordan Investment Bank is a public shareholding limited company with headquarters in
Amman — Jordan, On January 1, 1978 it was registered according to the Companies Law and
related subsequent amendments the last of which was amendment No, (22) for the year 1997.
Moreover the Bank's authorized and paid-up capital was increased gradually the last of which
was during the year 2014 to become JD 150 million at face value of JD 1 each.

The Bank is engaged in commercial banking activities through its (34) branches and offices in
Jordan and (1) branch in Cyprus and its subsidiaries in Qatar and Jordan (Arab Jordan
Investment Bank - (Qatar) LLC and the United Arab Jordan Company for Investment and
Financial Brokerage).

The Bank's shares are listed and traded in the Amman Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors in its
meeting held on 30 January 2020 and are subject to the approval of the Central Bank of Jordan
and the General Assembly of Shareholders.

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements for the Bank and its subsidiaries have been
prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board. The Bank has adhered to applicable local laws and
Central Bank of Jordan istructions

The consolidated financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss and financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income and financial derivatives which have been measured at fair value
at the date of the consolidated financial statements. Moreover fair value hedged assets and
liabilities are stated at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Jordanian Dinar (JD) which is the
functional currency of the Bank.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Bank and its
subsidiaries were the Bank holds control over the subsidiaries. The control exists when the Bank
controls the subsidiaries significant and relevant activities and is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiaries and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the subsidiaries. All transactions balances, income and expenses
between the Bank and subsidiaries are eliminated. The following subsidiaries were consolidated
in the Group's financial statements:

Ownership Company’s
Company’s Name Percentage Paid-up capital Head Quarter Date of ownership Objectives
JD
United Arab Jordan Company for Financial
Investment and Financial Brokerage 100% 2,500,000 Amman-Jordan 5 February 2002 Brokerage

Arab Jordan Invest Bank / Qatar 50% + two shares 35,450,000 Doha - Qatar 5 December 2005 Bank Activity

o



ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
31 DECEMBER 2019

The following are the most significant financial information for the subsidiary companies:

United Arab Jordan Company for

Investment and Financial Arab Jordan Investment
Brokerage Bank / Qatar
2019 2018 2019 2018
JD JD JD JD
Total assets 2,547,229 2,728,334 257,801,940 241,205,414
Total liabilities 166,918 62,796 219,476,977 200,122,583
Equity 2,380,311 2,665,538 38,324,963 41,082,831

For the year ending 31 December For the year ending 31 December

2019 2018 2019 2018
JD JD
Total revenue 86,220 63,852 8,413,139 7,759,831
Total expenses 371,446 291,010 5,750,266 5,139,282

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same financial year of the Bank
and by using the same accounting policies adopted by the Bank. If the accounting policies
adopted by the subsidiaries are different from those used by the Bank the necessary adjustments
to the financial statements of the subsidiaries are made to comply with the accounting policies
used by the Bank.

The Results of operations of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated statement of income
effective from the acquisition date, which is the date of transfer of control over the subsidiary to
the Group. The results of operations of subsidiaries disposed are included in the consolidated
statement of income up to the effective date of disposal, which is the date of loss of control over
the subsidiary.

Non-controlling interest represents the portion that is not owned by the Bank in the owner’s equity
in the subsidiary companies.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Segmental Information

Business sector represents a group of assets and operations that jointly provide products or
services subject to risks and returns different from those of other business segments, which were
measured according to the reports used by the General Manager and the Bank’s decision maker.

Geographical sector relates to providing products or services in an economic environment
subject to specific risks and returns different from those operating in other sectors of other
economic environments.



ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
31 DECEMBER 2019

Direct Credit Facilities

Direct credit facilities are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are provided
basically by the Bank or have been acquired and has no market price in the active markets,
which are measured at amortized cost.

A provision for the impairment in direct credit facilities is recognized through the calculation of
the expected credit loss in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard number
9.

Interest and commission earned on non-performing granted credit facilities are suspended in
accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan and in accordance with the
instructions of the regulatory authorities whichever is more conservative in countries where the
bank has its branches or subsidiaries.

When direct credit facilities are uncoliectible they are written off against the provision account,
any surplus in the provision is reversed through the consolidated statement of income, and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to revenue.

Fair Value

Fair value represents the closing market price (Assets Purchasing / Liabilities Selling) of financial
assets and derivatives on the date of the consolidated financial statements in active markets. In
case declared market prices do not exist active trading of some financial assets and derivatives
is not available or the market is inactive fair value is estimated by one of several methods
including the following:

- Comparison with the fair value of another financial asset with similar terms and
conditions.

- Analysis of the present value of expected future cash flows for similar instruments.

- Adoption of the option pricing models.

- Evaluation of long-term assets and liabilities that bear no interest through discounting
cash flows and amortizing premium / discount using the effective interest rate method
within interest revenue / expense in the consolidated statement of income.

The valuation methods aim to provide a fair value reflecting the market's expectations taking
into consideration the market expected risks and expected benefits when the value of the
financial assets. When the financial assets fair value can't be reliably measured, they are stated
at cost less any impairment.



ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
31 DECEMBER 2019

Investment in Associate

An associate company is the company whereby the bank exercises effective influence over their
decisions related to financial and operational policies without control, with the bank owning from
(20%) to (50%) of the voting rights, and is stated in accordance to the equity method.

Revenues and expenses resulting from transactions between the Bank and the associate
company are eliminated according to the bank's ownership percentage in these company.

Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

Are the assets that the bank’s management intends to hold for the purpose of collecting the
contractual cash flows which represents the cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the outstanding principal.

Financial assets are recorded at cost upon purchase plus acquisition expenses, Moreover the
issue premium \ discount is amortized using the effective interest associated with the decline in
value of these investments leading to the in ability to recover the investment or parts thereof are
deducted, any impairment is registered in the consolidated statement of income and should be
presented subsequently at amortized cost less any impairment losses.

The amount of impairment loss recognised at amortized cost is the expected credit loss of the
financial assets at amortized cost.

It is not allowed to reclassify any financial assets from/to this category except for certain cases
that are specified by the International Financial Reporting Standards (And if in any cases these
assets are sold before the maturity date the result of sale will be recorded in the consolidated
statement of income in a separated disclosure and caption in according to the International
Financial Reporting Standards in specific).

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

It is the financial assets purchased by the bank for the purpose of trading in the near future and
achieving gains from the fluctuations in the short-term market prices or trading margins.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially stated at fair value at acquisition
date (purchase costs are recorded in the consolidated statement of income upon acquisition)
and subsequently measured in fair value, Moreover changes in fair value are recorded in the
consolidated statement of income including the change in fair value resulting from translation of
non-monetary assets stated at foreign currency, Gains or losses resulting from the sale of these
financial assets or part of them are taken to the consolidated statement of income.

Dividends and interests from these financial assets are recorded in the consolidated statement
of income.

It is not allowed to reclassify any financial assets to / from this category except for the cases
specified in International Financial Reporting Standard.



ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK
(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
31 DECEMBER 2019

Financial Assets at Fair Value through other Comprehensive Income

These financial assets represents the investments in equity instruments held for the long term.

These financial assets are recognized at fair value plus transaction costs at purchase date and
are subsequently measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and within owner’s equity including the changes in fair value resulting from translation of non-
monetary assets stated in foreign currency. Gain or loss from the sale of these investments or
part of them should be recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and
within owner’s equity and the balance of the revaluation reserve for these assets should be
transferred directly to the retained earnings not to the consolidated statement of income.

No impairment testing is required for these assets. Unless classified debt instrument as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, in that case, the impairment is
calculated through the expected credit loss model.

Dividends are recorded in the consolidated statement of income.

Impairment in Financial Assets

Overview of the ECL principles

The adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Group's loan loss impairment method
by replacing IAS 39’s incurred loss approach with a forward-looking ECL approach as of 1
January 2018.

The Group records the allowance for expected credit losses for all loans and other debt financial
assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, in
this section all referred to as ‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to
impairment under IFRS 9.

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the
lifetime expected credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant increase in credit
risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit
loss.

The 12months is the portion of LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is calculated for the full period of credit exposure and for the probability of default during
the 12 months period on an individual basis or collective based on the financial instrument
portfolio and the nature of these financial instruments.

The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting
period, of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of
the financial instrument.



ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
31 DECEMBER 2019

Based on the above process, the Group groups its [oans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as
described below:

- Stage 1: When loans are first recognized, the Group recognizes an ECL allowance based on
the probability of default during 12 months period. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where
the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.

- Stage 2: When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
Group records an allowance for the LTECLs. Stage 2 loans also include facilities, where the
credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

- Stage 3: Loans that are considered credit-impaired. The Group records an allowance for the
LTECLs.

The calculation of ECLs
The Group calculates the expected credit losses in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standard Number 9 which is illustrated in Note 4.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and any impairment
loss in its value, Moreover Property and Equipment (except for land) are depreciated according
to the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives when ready for use of these assets
using the following annual rates.

%

Buildings 2
Equipment furniture and fixtures 9-15
Vehicles 20
Computer 12-15
Others 2-12

When the carrying amount of property and equipment exceeds their recoverable value, assets
are written down and impairment loss is recorded in the consolidated statement of income.

The useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed at the end of each year, in case the
expected useful life is different from what was determined before the change in estimate is
recorded in the following years being a change in estimates.

Property and equipment are derecognized when disposed or when there is no expected future
benefit from their use or disposal.



ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
31 DECEMBER 2019

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Bank makes an estimate of the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other
available fair value indicators.

Intangible Assets

A. Goodwill

Goodwill is recognized at cost and represents the excess of the acquisition costs or investment
costs in an affiliate or a subsidiary over the net assets fair value of the affiliate or subsidiary as
of the acquisition date. Goodwill arises from the investment in the subsidiary recognized as a
separate item in intangible assets. Later on, goodwill will be reviewed and reduced by any
impairment amount.

Goodwill is allocated to cash generating unit(s) to test impairments in its value.

Impairment testing is done on the date of the consolidated financial statements. Goodwill is
reduced if the test indicates that there is impairment in its value, and that the estimated
recoverable value of the cash generating unit(s) relating to goodwill is less than the book value
of the cash generating unit(s). Impairment is recognized in the consolidated statement of income.

B. Other Intangible assets

Intangible assets purchased in an acquisition are stated at fair value at the date of acquisition.
Other intangible assets purchased other than through acquisition are recorded at cost.

Intangible assets are to be classified on the basis of either definite or indefinite useful life.
Intangible assets with definite useful economic lives are amortized over their useful lives and
recorded as an expense in the consolidated statement of income. Intangible assets with
indefinite lives are reviewed for impairment as of the consolidated financial statements date, and
impairment loss is recorded in the consolidated statement of income.

No capitalization of intangible assets resulting from the banks' operations is made. They are
rather recorded as an expense in the consolidated statement of income in the same year.

Any indications of impairment in the value of intangible assets as of the consolidated financial
statements date are reviewed. Furthermore, the estimated useful lives of the impaired intangible
assets are reassessed, and any adjustment is made in the subsequent periods.

The intangible assets with a specified useful life appears of cost after deducting the annual
amortization. These assets were amortized by using the straight-line method on the useful life
using a percentage of 25% annually.



ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
31 DECEMBER 2019

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the bank has an obligation on the date of the consolidated
financial statement arising from a past event and the costs to settle the obligation is probable
and can be reliably measured.

Provision for employees' end-of-service indemnity

Provision for end of service indemnity is established by the Bank to fare any legal or contractual
obligations at the end of employees’ services and is calculated based on the service terms as of
the financial statements date.

Income Tax
Income tax expenses represent accrued taxes and deferred taxes.

Income tax expenses are accounted for on the basis of taxable income. Moreover taxable
income differs from income declared in the consolidated financial statements because the latter
includes non-taxable revenues or taxable expenses disallowed in the current year but deductible
in subsequent years accumulated losses acceptable by the tax law and items not accepted for
tax purposes or subject to tax.

Taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates according to the prevailing laws regulations
and instructions of the countries where the bank operates.

Deferred taxes are taxes expected to be paid or recovered as a result of temporary timing
differences between the value of the assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the value of the taxable amount. Deferred tax is calculated on the basis of the
liability method in the consolidated statement of financial position according to the rates
expected to be applied when the tax liability is settled or tax assets are recognized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reviewed as of the date of the consolidated financial
statements and reduced in case it is expected that no benefit will arise from payment or the

elimination of the need for deferred tax liabilities partially or totally.

Capital Cost of Issuing or Buying the Bank's Shares

Cost arising from the issuance or purchase of the bank's shares are charged to retained earnings
(net of the tax effect of these costs if any). If the shares issuance or purchase process is
incomplete these costs are recorded as expenses in the consolidated statement of income.

Accounts Managed on Behalf of Customers

These represent the accounts managed by the bank on behalf of its customers but do not
represent part of the bank's assets. The fees and commissions on such accounts are shown in
the consolidated statement of Income. A provision against the impairment in the capital-
guaranteed portfolios managed on behalf of customers is taken.



ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
31 DECEMBER 2019

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognized amounts and the Bank intends to either settle them on a net basis or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Realization of Income and Recognition of Expenses

Interest income is realized by using the effective interest method except for interest and
commissions from non-performing credit facilities which are not recognized as income and are
recorded in the interest and commissions in suspense account.

Expenses are recognised according to the accrual basis.

Commission is recorded as revenue when the related services are provided, moreover dividends
are recorded when realized (decided upon by the General Assembly of Shareholders).

Date of Recognizing Financial Assets

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trading date (which is the date on
which the bank commits itself to purchase or sell the asset).

Hedge Accounting and Financial Derivatives

Financial Derivatives for Hedging:

Fair Value Hedges:
For the purpose of hedge accounting the financial derivatives appear at fair value.

A fair value hedge is a hedge against the exposure to changes in the fair value of the bank's
recognised assets or liabilities.

When the conditions of an effective fair value hedge are met the resulting gains and losses from
the valuation of the fair value hedge and the change in the fair value of the hedged assets or
liabilities is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

When the conditions of an effective portfolio hedge are met the gain or loss resulting from the
revaluation of the hedging instrument at fair value as well as the change in the fair value of the
assets or liabilities portfolio are recorded in the consolidated income statement for the same
year.

Cash flow Hedges:

Hedge for the change in the current and expected cash flows exposures of the Bank’s assets
and liabilities.

When the conditions of an effective cash flow hedge are met the gain or loss of the hedging
instruments is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income and owner's equity, such
gain or loss is transferred to the consolidated statement of income in the period in which the
hedge transaction impacts the consolidated statement of income.

When the condition of the effective hedge do not apply the gain or loss resulting from the change
in the fair value of the hedging instrument is recorded in the consolidated statement of income
the same year.



ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
31 DECEMBER 2019

Assets Seized by the Bank against Due Debts

Assets that have been the subject of foreclosure by the bank are shown under "other assets" at
the acquisition value or fair value whichever is lower. As of the consolidated statement of financial
position date these assets are revalued individually at fair value, any decline in their market value
is taken to the consolidated statement of income as a loss whereas any such increase is not
recognized. Subsequent increase is taken to the income statement to the extent it does not
exceed the previously recorded impairment.

Repurchase and Resale Agreements

Assets sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a specified future date (repos) wili
continue to be recognised in the bank's consolidated financial statements due to the bank's
continuing exposure to the risks and rewards of these assets using the same accounting policies,
(The buyer has the right to control such assets (by sale or pledge as collateral) which are
reclassified as financial assets pledged as collateral), The proceeds of the sale are recorded
under loans and borrowings, The difference between the sale and repurchase price is recognised
as an interest expense over the agreement term using the effective interest method.

Assets purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future date (reverse
repos) are not recognised in the bank's consolidated financial statements since the bank is not
able to control these assets and since any risks and benefits do not accrue to the bank when
they occur. The related payments are recognised as part of deposits at banks and financial
institutions or direct credit facilities as applicable, Moreover the difference between the purchase
and resale price is recognised in the consolidated statement of income over the agreement term
using the effective interest method.

Foreign Currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing
at the date of the transactions. Moreover, financial assets and financial liabilities are translated
to Jordanian Dinar based on the average exchange rates declared by the Central Bank of Jordan
on the date of the consolidated financial statements.

Non-monetary assets and liabiiities denominated in foreign currencies and recorded at fair value
are translated on the date when their fair value is determined.

Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency translation are recorded in the consolidated
statement of income.

Translation differences for non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
(such as equity securities) are recorded as part of the change in fair value.

10-



ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
31 DECEMBER 2019

When consolidating the financial statements assets and liabilities of the branches and
subsidiaries abroad are translated from the primary currency to the currency used in the financial
statements using the average exchange rates prevailing on the consolidated statement of
financial position date and declared by the Central Bank of Jordan, Revenue and expense items
are translated using the average exchange rates during the year and exchange differences are
shown in a separate item within the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income
equity, In case of selling one of the subsidiaries or branches the related amount of exchange
difference is booked in revenues/expenses in the consolidated statement of income.

Profit or loss resulting from the foreign exchange of interest-bearing debt instruments and within
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income is included in the consolidated
statement of income. Differences in the foreign currency translation of equity instruments are
included in the cumulative change in fair value reserve within owner’s equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances with central banks and balances with banks
and financial institutions maturing within three months less balances due to banks and financial
institutions maturing within three months and restricted funds.

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with
those used in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018, except for the adoption of new standards and amendments effective as of 1 January 2019:

IFRS 16 Leases
During January 2016, the IASB issued IFRS 16 “Leases” which sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases.

IFRS 16 requirements substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS
17. Accordingly, the lessor continues to ciassify its leases as operating leases or finance leases,
and to account for those two types of leases differently.

IFRS 16 requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value, A lessee is required to recognize a
right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.

The Group has implemented IFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 on contracts that have been reclassified
as lease contracts in accordance with IAS 17 and IFRI 4 interpretation, The Group has adopted
IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach by applying the impact as an adjustment.

Resulting, in an increase of JD 3,147,078 on fixed assets, an increase of JD 2,611,164 on other

liabilities and a decrease of JD 535,914 on other assets was resulted by the implementation of
IFRS 16.
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The table below illustrates the book value of write of use of lease assets and liabilities and its
movement during the period ended 31 December 2019:

Lease
Buildings ~ Total liabilities
JD JD JD

As of 1 January 2019 3,147,078 3,147,078 2,611,164
744,833 744,833 744,833

Depreciation (670,713) (670,713) -
Finance cost - - 21,937
Payments = . (451,673)
As of 31 December 2019 3,221,198 3,_2_21,_1=98 e %9_26’261

The amount of rent expense for short term leases and low value assets leases which were
realized in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018
amounted to JD 1,640,013 and JD 1,558,028, respectively.

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of IAS 12 and does not apply to taxes or levies outside
the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments, An entity must determine whether to consider each
uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other tax treatments.

The interpretation is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1January 2019, but
certain transition reliefs are available.

No significant impact was resulted on the condensed consolidated financial information for the
group.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Transfer of Assets between an Investor and
Its Associate Companies or Joint Ventures

The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10 and IAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
control of a subsidiary that is sold or transferred to an investment in an associate or joint venture,
The amendments clarify that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or transfer of assets that
constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3, between an investor and its associate or joint
venture, is recognised in full, any gain or loss resulting from the sale or transfer of assets that do
not constitute a business, however, is recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors'
interests in the associate or joint venture.

The IASB has deferred the effective date of these amendments indefinitely, but an entity that
early adopts the amendments must apply them prospectively, The Group will apply these

amendments when they become effective.

No significant impact was resulted on the condensed consolidated financial information for the
group.
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Amendments to IAS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments to IAS 19 clarify the accounting when a plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement occurs during a fiscal year, the amendments also clarify that an entity first determines
any past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, without considering the effect of the asset
ceiling, this amount is recognised in profit or loss.

An entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling after the plan amendment, curtaiiment
or settlement, any change in that effect, excluding amounts included in the net interest, is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

These amendments are implemented on the plan, modifying or reducing or adjusting 1 January
2019. Any change is documented, except for amounts included in net interest in the statement
of other comprehensive income.

No significant impact was resulted on the condensed consolidated financial information for the
group.

Amendments to IAS 28: Long-term investments in associate companies and joint
ventures

The amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9 to long-term investments in an associate
companies or joint ventures to which the equity method is not applied but that, in substance,
form part of the net investment in the associate companies or joint ventures (long-term). This
clarification is relevant because it implies that the expected credit loss model in IFRS 9 applies
to such long-term investments.

The amendments also clarifies that, in applying IFRS 9, an entity does not take account of any
losses of the associate companies or joint ventures, or any impairment losses on the net
investment, recognised as adjustments to the net investment in the associate companies or joint
ventures that arise from applying IAS 28 Investments in Associate companies and Joint
Ventures.

No significant impact was resulted on the condensed consolidated financial information for the
group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES USED

Use of Estimate:

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of financial assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent liabilities. These estimates and assumptions also affect the revenues and expenses
and the resultant provisions as well as fair value changes reported in equity. In particular,
considerable judgment by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about several factors
involving varying degrees of judgment and uncertainty and actual results may differ resulting in
future changes in such provisions.

The management believes that their estimates are reasonable’ and are as follows:

A. EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS FOR FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTIZED COST

In determining provision for expected credit loss for direct credit facilities, important judgement
is required from the bank’s management in the estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows as well as an assessment of whether the credit risk on the financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition and incorporation of forward-looking information
in the measurement of ECL. The following are the most important judgments used:

Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for ECL calculation — IFRS 9 Methodology

Key concepts in IFRS 9 that have the most significant impact and require a high level of
judgment, as considered by the Bank while determining the impact assessment, are:

14-



ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
31 DECEMBER 2019

% Detailed explanation of the bank's internal credit rating system and its
working mechanism.

* The Bank relies on Moody's RA to classify corporate credit risk ratings, which reviews and
analyzes financial and objective information about the borrower. The program generates a
comprehensive assessment of the creditworthiness of the borrower, that results in the probability
of default (PD). The system classifies the corporate customers within 7 levels of active accounts
and 3 levels of non- performing accounts. The probability of default (PD) increase with the level
of risk, wherein, 3 segments are adopted at each level (grade) except for grade 1 as shown in
the table below:

Risk Grade
of the Credit
Customer Rating Credit Quality
1 Aaa Exceptional business credit, judged to be of highest quality, with minimal
credit risk.
2+ Aa Very good business credit with very low credit risk.
2 Aa2
2- Aa3
3+ A1 Low credit risk facilities.
3 A2
3- A3
4+ Baa1 Moderate credit risk facilities.
4 Baa2
4- Baa3
5+ Ba1 High credit risk facilities.
5 Ba2
5- Ba3
6+ B1 Very high credit risk facilities.
6 B2
6- B3
7+ Caa1 Weak Business credit: judged to be of poor standing and subject to very
7 Caa?2 high credit risk.
7- Caa3
Default Substandard facilities.
Default Doubtful facilities. N
10 Default Loss facilities.

+ Risk of individuals is measured based on portfolio valuation through customer behaviour
records and their commitment for timely payments.

+ Global ratings are used to measure the risk of other financial assets (fixed-rate financial
instruments and credit claims on banks and financial institutions).
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% The mechanism for calculating expected credit losses (ECL) on financial
instruments and for each item separately.

The Bank has adopted a special mechanism for calculating expected credit losses based on the
type of financial instrument:

¢ Financial instruments for the portfolio of companies and instruments with fixed income
and credit claims on banks and financial institutions:

In calculating the expected credit losses for this portfolio, the Bank relies on a specialized and
developed system from Moody's. Each customer / instrument is calculated individually at the
level of each account / instrument.

e Portfolio financial instruments:

In collaboration with Moody's, the Bank has developed a retail portfolio model to calculate
expected credit loss based on the requirements of the Standard. The provision for the Retail
Portfolio is calculated on an aggregate basis.

Governs the application of the requirements of IFRS 9 and includes the responsibilities of the
board of directors and executive management to ensure compliance with the requirements of
the IFRS.

The Board of Directors has several specialized committees, each with its own objectives and ()
to implement the Standard.

R/

% Risk Management Committee

- Review the implementation strategy of the standard and its impact on the risk management
of the bank before its adoption by the Board.

- Keeping pace with developments affecting the Bank's risk management and reporting
periodically to the Board.

- Verify that there is no difference between the actual risks taken by the Bank and the level of
acceptable risks approved by the Board.

- To create the appropriate conditions to ensure the identification of risks that have a material
impact and any activities carried out by the Bank that could expose it to risks greater than
the acceptable risk level, report to the Board and follow up on their treatment.
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Audit Committee

Review the financial statements after application of the Standard to verify the orders of
the Central Bank of Jordan regarding the adequacy of the provisions and to give an
opinion on the non-performing bank debts before submitting them to the Board of
Directors.

Review the observations contained in the reports of the Central Bank and the reports of
the external auditor and follow up the actions taken thereon.

Review the accounting issues that have a significant impact on the financial statements
of the Bank and ensure the accuracy of the accounting and control procedures and their
compliance.

< Financial Department

Calculate ECL and customer classification based on the three stages quarterly in
accordance with the accounting standards requirements and the Central Bank of Jordan
requirements and the acquaintance of the executive management on the results of
calculation.

Make necessary accounting adjustments and restrictions after the results are approved
and verify that all products have been calculated.

Prepare the necessary disclosures in cooperation with the concerned departments in the
bank in accordance with the requirements of the standard and the instructions of the
Central Bank.

% Risk Management Department

Participate with the departments in the development and construction of the business
model, including the classification of the Bank's financial assets in accordarlce with the

principles of IFRS 9.

Calculate the ECL then classify the customers based on the three stages quarterly in
accordance with the accounting standards requirements and the Central Bank of Jordan
requirements and the acquaintance of the executive management on the results of
calculation.

Review and approve risk factors in accordance with the bank methodology and policy.

*Definition and mechanism for calculating and monitoring the probability of default
(PD) and exposure at default (EAD) and loss given default(LGD).

Corporate and fixed-income financial instruments and credit claims on banks and
financial institutions:

Probability of default (PD): The percentage of the probability of the borrower defaulting
or failing to meet the payment of the installments or obligations towards the bank on its
due dates.
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The probability of default is calculated for each customer using Moody's Risk Analyst MRA,
which is based on the customer's financial data and / or based on the objective evaluation of the
customer.

The system has three calculation models to reach the default rate:
A. Large and medium-sized companies (with financial statements).
B. Small businesses (without financial statements).

C. Individuals with high solvency.

- Loss given Default (LGD)
The percentage that represents the portion of the exposure that will be lost in case of default

The Loss Given Default (LGD) is calculated through a specialized system from Moody's. The
system has a model calculation that is used to reach the (LGD):

A. Clean Basis Exposure: The loss ratio is calculated based on the economic sector, the
probability of default and the geographical area of the customer.

B. Exposure to acceptable collateral Credits: which include the covered and unsecured
portion, are considered when calculating losses at default. Haircut ratios are defined in
accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank of Jordan

- Exposure at Default (EAD): This is the present value of used and unused facilities at
defaults, in addition to any outstanding receivables, plus any accrued interest not
received.

All the above ratios shall be entered at the level of each account / instrument together with details
of facilities / financial instruments on the expected credit loss calculation system which also
calculates exposure at default (EAD).

Retail Portfolio:

- Probability of Default (PD): is calculated based on the relationship between the
historical regression ratios of each product and the economic variables.

- Loss Given Default (LGD) is calculated based on historical bad debts compared with
its time of default.

- Exposure at default (EAD) for both personal loans and housing loans is calculated
based on future cash flows (cash flows according to repayment schedules) For credit
cards, credit exposure is assumed to be equal to the current outstanding balance plus a
certain percentage of the unutilized balance Based on a study by Moody's.
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Determines the significant change in credit risk that the Bank has relied on in calculating
the expected credit losses.

Stage

Nature of the accounts within the stage.

First Stage
Stage 1
(First recognition)

Regular financial instruments
- Financial instruments with less than 50 days' receivables. Note that
this period will be reduced by 10 days per year to become 30 days
by the year 2021.
- Customers with a risk rating of -6 and below.
- Bonds and financial investments with a credit rating of B1 and above
according to Moody'’s.

Second Stage

Regular financial instruments that have shown a significant increase in
credit risk since the date of initial recognition.

- Financial instruments that have dues from 50-90 days, noting that the
minimum period will be reduced by 10 days per year to become 30-90 days
by the year 2021.

- Current and under-exposed accounts if the period of non-payment is more
than 30 days and less than 90 days.

Stage 2 - Customers with a risk score of +7, 7, and 7.
(Credit ‘quallty - Bonds and financial investments that carry a credit rating between B1 and
decline) Caa3
- A decline in the possibility of stumbling to the customer by 2% and above.
- A decline in the credit rating since the initial recognition of bonds and
financial investments by four degrees or more.
- All accounts classified under observation.
- The ceilings that have expired and have not been renewed or have not
been postponed.
Third Stage Unregulated financial instruments that have objective evidence / evidence to
Stagg 3 .. | default with a negative impact on the future cash flow of the financial
(Decre\?:iiel? credit | jnstrument.

1. The Bank's policy in identifying the common elements on which the credit risk and expected
credit loss were measured on a collective basis.
The Retail Portfolio is calculated on a lump sum basis. The portfolio was divided into three

categories:

1) Personal loans
2) Housing loans.
3) Credit cards.

These categories share the same credit characteristics:
4) Credit Product Type
5) Quality of guarantees
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e Macroeconomic Factors, Forward Looking Information (FLI) and Multiple
Scenarios

The measurement of expected credit losses for each stage and the assessment of significant
increases in credit risk must consider information about past events and current conditions as
well as reasonable and supportable forecasts of future events and economic conditions. The
estimation and application of forward-looking information will require significant judgment.

PD, Loss Given Default (LGD) and Exposure At Default (EAD) inputs used to estimate Stage 1
and Stage 2 credit loss allowances are modelled based on the macroeconomic variables (or
changes in macroeconomic variables) that are most closely correlated with credit losses in the
relevant portfolio.

Each macroeconomic scenario used in our expected credit loss calculation will have forecasts
of the relevant macroeconomic variables.

Our estimation of expected credit losses in Stage 1 and Stage 2 will be a discounted probability-
weighted estimate that considers a minimum of three future macroeconomic scenarios.

Our base case scenario will be based on macroeconomic forecasts (e.g.: GDP, inflation, interest
rate). Upside and downside scenarios will be set relative to our base case scenario based on
reasonably possible alternative macroeconomic conditions. Scenario design, including the
identification of additional downside scenarios will occur on at least an annual basis and more
frequently if conditions warrant.

Scenarios will be probability-weighted according to our best estimate of their relative likelihood
based on historical frequency and current trends and conditions. Probability weights will be
updated on a quarterly basis. All scenarios considered will be applied to all portfolios subject to
expected credit losses with the same probabilities.

o Definition of default

The definition of default used in the measurement of expected credit losses and the assessment
to determine movement between stages will be consistent with the definition of default used for
internal credit risk management purposes. IFRS 9 does not define default, but contains a
rebuttable presumption that default has occurred when an exposure is greater than 90 days past
due.
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B. INCOME TAX

Income tax expenses represent accrued taxes and deferred taxes,

Income tax expenses are accounted for on the basis of taxable income, Moreover taxable
income differs from income declared in the consolidated financial statements because the latter
includes non-taxable revenues or taxable expenses disallowed in the current year but deductibie
in subsequent years accumulated losses acceptable by the tax law and items not accepted for
tax purposes or subject to tax.

Taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates according to the prevailing laws regulations
and instructions of the countries where the bank operates.

Deferred taxes are taxes expected to be paid or recovered as a result of temporary timing
differences between the value of the assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the value of the taxable amount, Deferred tax is calculated on the basis of the
liability method in the consolidated statement of financial position according to the rates
expected to be applied when the tax liability is settled or tax assets are recognized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reviewed as of the date of the consolidated financial
statements and reduced in case it is expected that no benefit will arise from payment or the
elimination of the need for deferred tax liabilities partially or totally.

C. FAIR VALUE

Fair value represents the closing market price (Assets Purchasing / Liabilities Selling) of financial
assets and derivatives on the date of the consolidated financial statements in active markets, In
case declared market prices do not exist active trading of some financial assets and derivatives
is not available or the market is inactive fair value is estimated by one of several methods
including the following:

- Comparison with the fair value of another financial asset with similar terms and
conditions.

- Analysis of the present value of expected future cash flows for similar instruments.

- Adoption of the option pricing models.

- Evaluation of long-term assets and liabilities that bear no interest through discounting
cash flows and amortizing premium / discount using the effective interest rate method
within interest revenue / expense in the consolidated statement of income.

The valuation methods aim to provide a fair value reflecting the market’s expectations taking
into consideration the market expected risks and expected benefits when the value of the
financial assets, When the financial assets fair value can’t be reliably measured, they are stated
at cost less any impairment.
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5. Cash and balances at the Central Bank of Jordan

This item consists of the following:

Cash in vaults

Balances at Central Bank of Jordan:

Statutory Cash reserve
Current accounts
Total

2019 2018
JD JD
18,794,330 20,443,867
68,252,880 64,490,248
42,038,400 36,604,981
129,085,610 121,539,096

Except for the statutory cash reserve there are no restricted balances at the Central Bank of

Jordan as of 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Cash and balances at the Central Bank of Jordan classification based on the Bank’s internal

credit rating is as follows:

Low risk (2-6)

Acceptable risk (7)

High risk (8-10)

Total balances as of 31 December
2019

2019 31 December
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 2018
JD JD JD JD JD
110,291,280 - - 110,291,280 101,095,229
110,291,280 - - 110,291,280 101,095,229

The movement on balances at Central Bank of Jordan as of 31 December 2019 is as follows:

Total balances as of 1 January 2019
New balances

Paid balances

Total Balances as of 31 December 2019

2019

2018

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total

JD JD JD JD JD
101,095,229 - 101,095,229 51,725,082
10,213,161 - - 10,213,161 51,121,556
(1,017,110) . - (1,017,110) (1,751,409)
110,291,280 - - 110,291,280 101,095,229

The movement on expected credit losses for balances at Central Bank of Jordan as of 31 December 2019 is as

follows:

Total balances as of 1 January 2019
New balances
Paid balances

Total balances as of 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
JD JD JD JD JD
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6. Balances at banks and financial institutions- net

This item consists of the following:

Local banks and Foreign banks and

financial institutions financial institutions Total
Description 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

JD JD JD JD JD JD
Current and call accounts 275,973 442 526 91,946,751 102,081,211 92,222,724 102,523,737
Deposits maturing within 3 months or

less - - 199,256,268 205,035,572 199,256,268 205,035,572

Total 275,973 442,526 291,203,019 307,116,783 291,478,992 307,559,309
Less: ECL provision - - (38,315) (38,315) (38,315) (38,315)

275,973 442,526 291,164,704 307,078,468 291,440,677 307,520,994

The balances at banks and financial institutions that bears no interest amounted to JD
92,220,593 as of 31 December 2019 (JD 117,109,425 as of 31 December 2018).

There are no restricted balances at banks and financial institutions as of 31 December 2019 and
2018.

Balances at banks and financial institutions’ classification based on the Bank's internal credit
rating.

2019 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
“Individual” “Individual”  “Individual” Total Total
JD JD JD JD JD
Low risk (2-6) 286,055,028 - - 286,055,028 302,275,510
Acceptable risk (7) - 5,423,964 - 5,423,964 5,283,799
High risk (8-10) = " - = -

Total 286,055,028 5,423,964 - 291,478,992 307,559,309

The movement on balances at banks and financial institutions as of 31 December 2019 is as
follows:

2019 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
JD JD JD JD JD
Total Balances as of 1 January 2019 302,275,510 5,283,799 - 307,559,309 254,895,109
New balances 162,756,220 140,165 - 162,896,385 215,069,926
Paid balances (178,976,702) = - (1 78,976,702) (162,405,726)
Total Balances as of 31 December 2019 286,055,028 5,423,964 - 291,478,992 307,559,309
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The movement on the expected credit losses for balances at banks and financial institutions as ot 31
December 2019 is as follows:

- 2019 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
JD JD JD JD JD
Total Balances as of 1 January 2019 31,041 7,274 - 38,315 25,427
New balances - - - - 12,888
Paid balances - - - 3 -
Total Balances as of 31 December 2019 31,041 7,274 2 38,315 38,315

7. DEPOSITS AT BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS - NET

This Item consists of the following:

Local Banks and Foreign Banks and
Financial Institutions Financial Institutions Total

Description 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

JD JD JD JD JD JD
Deposits maturing within 3-6 months - - 13,952,700 5,294,846 13,952,700 5,294,846
Deposits maturing within 6-9 months - - 5,459,892 5,308,473 5,459,892 5,308,473
Deposits maturing from 9 months to
one year - B 5,488,036 5,329,884 5,488,036 5,329,884
Total - - 24900,628 15,933,203 24,900,628 15,933,203
Less: ECL - - (55,518) (565,518) (65,518)  (55,518)
Total - - 24845110 15,877,685 24,845110 15,877,685

- There are no restricted balances at banks and financial institutions of 31 December 2019 and
2018.

Distribution of deposits at banks and financial institutions according to the Bank’s internal credit
rating:

2019 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
“individual” “individual’ “individual’ Total Total
JD JD JD JD JD
Low risk (2-6) - - - - -
Acceptable risk (7) 8,508,000 16,392,628 - 24,900,628 15,933,203
High risk (8-10) - - - - -
Total 8,508,000 16,392,628 - 24,900,628 15,933,203
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The movement on deposits at banks and financial institutions as of 31 December 2019 is as

follows:
2019 - 2018
Stage1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
JD JD JD JD JD

Total Balances as of 1 January 2019 - 15,933,203 15,933,203 16,535,460
New balances 8,508,000 2,945,086 - 11,453,086 2,975,507
Paid balances (2,485,661) - (2,485661) (3,577,764)
Total Balances as of 31 December 2019 8,508,000 16,392,628 - 24,900,628 15,933,203

The movement on the expected credit losses for deposits at banks and financial institutions as of

31 December 2019 is as follows:

2019 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
JD JD JD JD JD
Total Balances as of 1 January 2019 55,518 - 55,518 55,518
New balances E - - B -
Paid balances - - - - -
Total Balances as of 31 December 2019 55,518 - 55,518 55,518
8. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
This item consists of the following:
2019 2018
JD JD
Quoted equity shares - 1,203,192 263,244

9. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income classified based on IFRS 9:

2019 2018
JD JD

Quoted financial assets:
Corporate shares 13,054,223 13,104,260
Corporate bonds 1,169,185 -
Total quoted financial assets 14,223,408 13,104,260
Unquoted financial assets:
Corporate shares 5,842,433 2,402,728
Total unquoted financial assets 5,842,433 2,402,728
Expected credit loss (6,000) -
Total 20,059,841 15,506,988
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Cash dividends on the investments above amounted to JD 206,501 for the year ended 31

December 2019 (JD 268,424 for the year ended 31 December 2018).

Loss from the sale of financial assets through other comprehensive income amounted to JD 3,606,
which was credited to the retained earnings account (JD 4,799 for the year ended 31 December

2018).

Distribution of bonds based on the bank’s internal credit rating:

31 December

31 December 2019 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
“Individual” “Individual” “Portfolio” Total Total
JD JD JD JD JD
Low risk (2-6) 1,169,185 - - 1,169,185 -
Acceptable risk (7) - - - - -
High risk (8-10) - - - = .
Total 1,169,185 - - 1,169,185 -
The movement on bonds is as follows:
31 December
31 December 2019 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
JD JD JD JD JD
Balance as of 1 January 2019 - - - - -
New Balances 1,169,185 - - 1,169,185 -
Paid Balances - - - 5 -
Balance as of 31 December 2019 1,169,185 - - 1,169,185 -
The movement on provision for impairment against bonds is as follows:
31 December
31 December 2019 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
JD JD JD JD JD
Balance as of 1 January 2019 - - - - -
New Balances 6,000 - - 6,000 -
Paid Balances . - - 3 =
Balance as of 31 December 2019 6,000 - - 6,000 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
31 DECEMBER 2019

10. Dlrect credit facilities - net

This item consists of the following:

Individuals (Retail)
Loans *

Credit cards
Housing loans

Large companies

Loans *

Overdraft

Small and medium companies
Loans *

Overdraft

Government & public sector

Total

Less: provision for impairment of direct credit facilities

Less: suspended interest
Net credit facilities

2019 2018
JD JD

118,659,263 95,128,314
9,178,208 9,388,751
103,490,576 100,855,698
344,070,349 247,721,903
86,903,535 119,331,110
24,661,859 23,480,732
5,512,579 5,571,496
139,013,136 168,768,693
831,489,505 770,246,697
(13,279,473) (14,468,779)
(2,737,109) (3,083,349)
815,472,923 752,694,569

*  Net after deducting interests and commission received in advance.

- Non-performing credit facilities amounted to 13,512,644 representing 1.63% of direct
credit facilities balance as of 31 December 2019 (JD 18,974,146 representing 2.46% of

the granting balance for the previous year).

- Non-performing credit facilities net of interest in suspense amounted to JD 12,343,562
representing 1.49% of direct credit facilities balance net of interest in suspense (JD

16,747,105 representing 2.18% for the previous year).

- Credit facilities granted to and guaranteed by the Jordanian Government amounted to
JD 174,846,009 representing 21.03% of total direct credit facilities as of 31 December
2019 (JD 145,901,821 representing 18.94% for the previous year).
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

31 DECEMBER 2019

Movement on credit facilities:

31 December

31 December 2019 2018

Item Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
JD JD JD JD JD

Balance as of 1 January 2019 734,329,453 16,943,098 18,974,146 770,246,697 769,112,948
New balances during the year 166,871,099 12,360,609 758,953 179,990,661 46,400,745
Paid balances (97,876,509) (10,636,445) (1,788,095) (110,301,049) (41,395,194)
Transferred to stage 1 5,079,434 (5,403,799) 324,365
Transferred to stage 2 (5,351,351) 6,987,724 (1,636,373) -
Transferred to stage 3 (790,473) (1,557,626) 2,348,099 E
Changes from adjustments 1,625,262 (1,935,474) (36,360) (446,572) 96,290
Written-off balances (2,000,000) (568,141)  (5,432,091) (8,000,232) (3,968,092)
Balance as of 31 December 2019 801,786,915 16,189,946 13,512,644 831,489,505 770,246,697
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2019

Provision for impairment of direct credit facilities:

The following represent the movement on provision for impairment of direct credit facilities:

Balance as of 1 January 2019
New balance during the year
Paid balances

Transferred to stage 1
Transferred to stage 2
Transferred to stage 3

Changes resulted by adjustments
Written-off balances

Balance as of 31 December 2019

31 December
31 December 2019 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
JD JD JD JD JD
4,853,195 2,705,110 6,910,474 14,468,779 14,977,601
754,106 804,483 2,658,367 4,216,956 2,118,977
(400,355)  (990,341) (654,806) (2,045,502) (743,692)
132,479  (128,184) (4,295) - -
(14,829) 445,060 (430,231) - -
(5,034) (28,974) 34,008 - -
(424,267) 371,703 64,343 11,779 (12,889)
- (117,282)  (3,255,257) (3,372,539) (1,871,218)
4,895,295 3,061,575 5,322,603 13,279,473 14,468,779

* Provision no longer needed due to settlements and transferred against other debts amounted to
JD 2,495,160 as of 31 December 2019 (2018: JD 3,065,216).

Interest in suspense:

The following is the movement on the interest in suspense:

For the year ended 31 December 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Interest suspended during the year

Less: Interest in suspense reversed to
revenues

Less: Interest in suspense transferred to off -
statement of financial position accounts

Less: Interest in suspense written off

Balance at the end of the year

For the year ended 31 December 2018
Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Interest suspended during the year

Less: Interest in suspense reversed to
revenues

Less: Interest in suspense transferred to off -
statement of financial position accounts

Less: Interest in suspense written off

Balance at the end of the year

Small and
Housing Large medium
Individual loans companies  companies Total

JD JD JD JD JD
436,606 1,004,742 9,305 1,632,696 3,083,349
475,637 312,241 8,119 625,655 1,421,652
(70,157) (102,823) * (84,150) (257,130)
(189,026) (105,210) (1,192,464) (1,486,700)
(24,062) - - (24,062)
628,998 1,108,950 17,424 981,737 2,737,109
336,486 910,490 = 1,609,214 2,856,190
590,101 312,939 9,306 763,649 1,675,994
(117,319) (116,340) - (343,715) (577,374)
(368,050) (91,324) (396,452) (855,826)
(4,612) (11,023) (15,635)
436,606 1,004,742 3,083,349

9,305 1,632,696
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2019

Following is the economic sector of credit facilities - net:

Financial
Industrial
Trading
Real Estate
Equities
Retail

Governmental and public sector

Total

2019
Inside Qutside 31 December
Jordan Jordan Total 2018
JD JD JD JD
2,032,776 = 2,032,776 7,422,402
212,319,284 2 212,319,284 173,435,947
200,713,981 36,726,801 237,440,782 204,383,500
96,363,012 4,204,040 100,567,052 98,130,274
505,487 = 505,487 913,526
115,577,333 8,017,073 123,594,406 99,640,227
139,013,136 . 139,013,136 168,768,693
766,525,009 48,947,914 815,472,923 752,694,569

Following is the geographical distribution of credit facilities- net:

Inside Jordan

Asia
Europe
Total

-32-

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
JD JD
766,525,009 710,591,136
43,094,326 38,272,539
5,853,588 3,830,894
815,472,923 752,694,569




ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2019

11. FINANCIAL ASSETS A1 AMORTIZED COST - NET

This item consists of the following:

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
JD JD

Quoted financial assets
Governmental bonds and with their guarantee B 2,303,786
Foreign government bonds 5,867,892 5,919,331
Companies bonds 16,928,398 19,789,265
Total quoted financial assets 22,796,290 28,012,382
Unquoted financial assets
Governmental bonds and with their guarantee 685,519,935 656,622,083
Companies bonds 3,582,500 3,582,500
Total unquoted financial assets 689,102,435 660,204,583

711,898,725 688,216,965
Less: Provision for impairment (280,292) (193,792)
Total 711,618,433 688,023,173
Debt instruments analysis

2019 2018
JD JD

Fixed rate 693,754,726 669,468,064
Variable rate 17,863,707 18,555,109
Total 711,618,433 688,023,173

Financial assets at amortized cost classifications based on the Bank’s internal credit rating:

2019 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
“individual” “individual” “individual” Total Total
JD JD JD JD JD

Credit rating categories
based on Bank’s internal
system:
Low risk (2-6) 711,316,225 711,316,225 688,034,465
Acceptable risk (7) - - - - -
High risk (8-10) - - 582,500 582,500 182,500
Total 711,316,225 - 582,500 711,898,725 688,216,965
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2019

The movement on the financial assets at amortized cost during 2019 is as follows:

Total balance as of 1 January 2019

New balances during the year

Paid balances

Net transferred in stage 1

Net transferred in Stage 2

Net transferred in Stage 3

Total balance as of 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
“individual” “individual” “individual” Total Total
JD JD JD JD JD
688,034,465 182,500 688,216,965 597,642,867
195,636,980 - 195,636,980 146,704,617
(171,855,220) (100,000) (171,955,220) (56,130,519)
(500,000) - 500,000 - -
711,316,225 - 582,500

711,898,725 688,216,965

The movement of the ECL of the financial assets at amortized cost is as follows:

Total Balances as of 1 January 2019

New balances

Paid balances

Total Balances as of 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Total
JD JD JD JD JD
84,292 - 109,500 193,792 157,292
- - 86,500 86,500 36,500
84,292 - 196,000 280,292 193,792
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2019

12. Investment in associate company

The following is the movement on the investment in the associate company:

2019 2018
~JD JD
Balance at the beginning of the year 19,011,340 19,947,778
The Bank's share in the associate company's profit 1,034,715 280,739
Foreign currency translation adjustment 641,168 (1,217,177)
Balance at the end of the year 20,687,223 19,011,340

- Investment in associate company represents the Bank’s share in Jordan International Bank/
London (United Kingdom, which amounts to 25% of capital (GBP 65,000,000)), the Bank’s share
in net income for the year ended 31 December 2019 was calculated based on latest unaudited
available financial statements as of 31 December 2019, in addition to Bank’s share percentage

which is 25%.

- The Bank's right to vote on the General Assembly's decisions regarding this investment is based

on the ownership percentage in the investment.

The Bank's share in the associate company's assets, liabilities, and revenues is as follows:

2019 2018

JD JD
Total assets 355,944 425 357,158,516
Total liabilities ) 273,195,533 281,113,158
Net assets 82,748,892 76,045,358
The Bank's share in net assets 20,687,223 19,011,340
Net income for the year 4,138,860 1,122,956
The Bank’s share in net income for the year 1,034,715 280,739

The Bank's share of 25% in the assets and liabilities and net profit of Jordan International Bank /
London has been calculated for the year 2019 as shown above according to the latest financial

statements available on 31 December 2019.
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK
(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2019

14. Intangible assets — Net

This item consists of the following:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions

Transfers (Note 13)*

Disposals

Amortization for the year

Balance at the end of the Year

Computer’'s Software and

programs
2019 2018
JD JD
694,005 930,783
842,665 273,220
581,440 13,375
(45) .
(511,199) (523,373)
1,606,866 694,005

* This represents what has been transferred from payments to acquire property and equipment during

the year 2018 and 2019.

15. Other Assets

This item consists of the following:

Accrued interest and commissions revenue
Prepaid expenses

Assets seized by the Bank *

Stationery and printing

Refundable deposits

Cheque clearing

Others

Total

* The following is the movement on the assets seized by the Bank:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions
Disposals*

Less: Provision for assets seized by the Bank **
Balance at the end of the year

2019 2018
JD JD
18,134,721 17,932,921
1,592,163 1,554,334
17,145,263 15,145,544
286,972 230,100
457,236 451,327
62,728 286,632
1,357,480 1,516,029
39,036,563 37,116,887
2019 2018
JD JD
16,984,544 20,008,902
2,684,912 1,978,239
(685,193)  (5,000,597)
18,084,263 16,984,544
(1,839,000)  (1,839,000)
17,145,263 15,145,544

* During 2018, disposals included amount of a land that has been transferred to property and equipment,

amounted to JD 4,625,231.

**  According to Central Bank of Jordan’s Law, buildings and plots of land that were foreclosed by the Bank
against debts due from clients should be sold within two years from the foreclosure date, however this
period could be extended for two more years in exceptional cases by the Central Bank of Jordan.
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2019

The movemenl on provision for assets seized by the Bank is as follows:

2019 2018
JD JD
Balance-Beginning of the year 1,839,000 1,326,000
Provision during the year - 513,000
Balance- End of the year =L_1__’_839’000 1,839,000
16. Banks and financial institutions’ deposits
This item consists of the following:
2019 2018
Inside the Outside the Inside the Outside the
Kingdom Kingdom Total Kingdom Kingdom Total
JD JD JD JD JD JD
Current accounts and
demand deposits 3,327,624 5,699,325 9,026,949 81,547 8,399,933 8,481,480
Time deposits due within
3 months 152,878,425 364,899,867 517,778,292 115,809,321 293,090,750 408,900,071
Time deposits 3-6 months - 2,127,000 2,127,000 - - -
Time deposits 6-9 months

709,000 709,000

90,000,000 120,000,000 120,000,000

Time deposits over 1 year 90,000,000 -
Total 246,206,049  373,435192 619,641,241 235,890,868 301,490,683 537,381,551
17. Customers’ deposits
This item consists of the following:
Small and
medium Government and
Individual Large companies companies Public Sector Total
31 December 2019 JD JD JD JD JD
Current accounts and demand deposits 87,779,612 75,826,193 50,043,908 13,230,173 226,879,886
Saving accounts 160,518,453 1,053,746 1,044,820 16,651 162,633,670
Time deposits 521,957,071 48,475,116 17,512,127 114,828,469 702,772,783
Total 770,255,136 125,355,055 68,600,855 128,075,293 1,092,286,339
31 December 2018
Current accounts and demand deposits 83,392,236 82,009,917 52,887,554 12,734,348 231,024,055
Saving accounts 169,903,845 3,151,169 965,357 5,348 174,025,719
Time deposits 471,611,415 39,632,272 10,194,983 104,073,603 625,512,273
Total 724,907,496 124,793,358 64,047,894 116,813,299 1,030,562,047

- Deposits of the government and the general public sector inside the kingdom of Jordan amounted to JD
92,625,293 and the government deposits outside the Kingdom of Jordan JD 35,450,000 equivalent to
11.73% from the total deposits as of 31 December 2019 (JD 116,813,299 equivalent to 11.33% as of 31
December 2018).

- Non-interest bearing deposits amounted to JD 212,038,242 equivalent to 19.41% of total deposits as of
31 December 2019 (JD 214,435,376 equivalent to 20.81% as of 31 December 2018).

- Restricted deposits amounted to JD 2,948,422 equivalent to 0.27% of total deposits as of 31 December
2019 of which JD 3,456 is at Cyprus branch and JD 2,944,966 at Jordan Branches (JD 4,815,195
equivalent to 0.47% as of 31 December 2018 of which JD 4,218 is at Cyprus branch and JD 4,810,977
at Jordan branches).

- Dormant deposits amounted to JD 1,421,221 as of 31 December 2019 (JD 776,022 for the previous year).
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK
(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2019

18. Borrowed money from the Central Bank of Jordan

This item represents a repurchase agreement between the Central Bank of Jordan and Arab Jordan
Investment Bank; through wish the bank sold treasury bonds and treasury bills with a commitment to
repurchase these treasury bonds and treasury bills at the maturity date of the agreement. In addition to that,
this item includes borrowed money from Central Bank of Jordan lent back to customers to finance production

projects.

This item consists of the following:

31 December 2019

Central Bank of Jordan

Central Bank of Jordan

Total

31 December 2018

Central Bank of Jordan

Central Bank of Jordan

Central Bank of Jordan

Central Bank of Jordan

Total

19. Cash margins

This item consists of the following:

Cash margins against direct credit facilities
Cash margins against indirect credit facilities

Total

-39-

Amount Maturity date Coliaterals Payment terms Interest rates
100,000,000 8 December 2020 Treasury bonds One payment 4,75%
Demand bills of
4,457,503 30 September 2025 exchange Monthly payments 1,75%
104,457,503
Treasury bonds
15,000,000 2 January 2019 and bills One payment 5.5%
Treasury bonds
50,000,000 2 January 2019 and bills One payment 5.5%
Treasury bonds
80,000,000 7 January 2019 and bills One payment 4.75%
1,041,810 Demand bills of
31 December 2023 exchange Monthly payments 175%
146,041,810
2019 2018
JD JD
32,042,806 29,540,428
8,253,127 9,450,865
40,295,933 38,991,293




ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2019

20. Sundry provisions

This item consists of the following:

2019
Beginning Provided during Used during the Ending
balance the year year balance
JD JD JD JD
Provision for end of service indemnity 507,183 59,398 (561,661) 514,920
Lawsuits provision 99,691 108,000 (45,039) 162,652
Total 606,8711_ 167,398 (96,700) 677,572
2018
Beginning Provided during Used during the Ending
balance the year year balance
JD JD JD JD
Provision for end of service indemnity 1,736,950 38,070 (1,267,837) 507,183
Lawsuits provision 127,000 - (27,309) 99,691
Other provisions 60,000 - (60,000) -
Total 1,923,950 38,070 (1,355,146) 606,874
21. Income tax
A- Income tax provision
The movement on the income tax provision is as follows:
2019 2018
JD JD

Balance at the beginning of the year 6,866,156 7,785,786
Income tax paid (6,974,378) (8,107,925)
Accrued income tax expense 7,443,100 7,188,295
Balance —at the end of the year 7,334,878 6,866,156

B - Income tax in the consolidated statement of income represents the following:

Accrued Income tax expense for the year

Amortization of deferred tax assets
Total

2019 2018
JD JD
7,443,100 7,188,295
19,631 391,800
7,462,731 7,580,095
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2019

C - Tax situation

The Bank has reached a final settlement with the Income and Sales Tax Department for all previous years
up to 2018 except for the year 2017. In addition, the file of 2014 was reopened during the year 2018 by the
Income and Sales Tax Department where the bank will not incur any additional tax charges for that year.

United Arab Jordan Company for Investment and Financial Brokerage (a subsidiary) has reached a final
settlement with the Income and Sales Tax Department in Jordan up to the year 2016, In addition the company
has submitted its tax returns for the years 2017 and 2018 noting that the income tax department did not
review the company data for these years up until the date of issuance of these financial statements. All tax
balances due were paid by the company.

A final tax settlement has been reached for the bank in Qatar up to the year 2018.

A final tax settlement has been reached for Cyprus branch up to the year 2018.

The Bank has booked a provision against any expected tax liabilities for the declared years which includes
the above-mentioned years, in the opinion of the bank’s management and its tax consultant the income tax
provision booked in the consolidated financial statement is sufficient to cover any future tax liabilities that
may arise.

D- Deferred Tax Assets

The details of this item are as follows:

2019 2018
Beginning of Amount Additional End of Deferred Deferred
the Year Released_ Amounts the Year Tax Tax
JD JD JD JD JD JD
Accounts Included
Provision for impairment of direct
credit facilities 1,202,335 . = 1,202,335 456,887 456,887
Provision for staff end-of-service
Indemnity* 220,945 (561,661) - 169,284 64,328 83,959
1,423,280 (51,661) - 1,371,619 521,215 540,846

*  Deferred tax assets has not been calculated on the total balance of end-of-service indemnity provision as
a part of this balance relates to Arab Jordan Investment Bank — Qatar.

The movement on deferred tax assets is as follows:

2019 2018
JD JD
Balance at the beginning of the year 540,846 932,646
Released (19,631) (434,497)
Social contribution difference - 42 697
Balance at the end of the year 521,215 540,846
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK
(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2019

E- Reconciliation between accounting profit and taxable profit is as follows:
2019 2018
JD JD
Accounting profit 23,665,970 24,396,422
Non-taxable income (1,131,415) (2,952,797)
Non- deductible expenses 458,000 780,106
Taxable profit 22,992 555 22,223,731
Income tax for the year 7,443,100 7,188,295
Effective income tax rate 31.53% 31.07%

According to the Income Tax Law No. (38) for the year 2018 which has come effective from 1 January 2019
income tax expense was calculated at tax rate of 35% and 3% social contribution, as of 31 December 2019

and 35% for the year 2018.

The tax rate on the Bank’s branch in Cyprus is 12.5 % and the subsidiary in Qatar is 10% and 24% for the

subsidiary in Jordan.

Deferred tax assets are calculated by 38% of provision for impairment, end of service provision and other
provisions as of 31 December 2019, where the management thinks that the deferred taxes are due in future

periods.

22. Other liabilities

This item consists of the following:

2019 2018
JD JD

Accrued interest expense 8,634,253 7,593,713
Accounts payable 31,441,051 39,314,065
Accrued unpaid expenses 1,670,897 1,342,747
Transfers and checks payable 289,923 664,007
Bank cheques issued 2,477,389 2,735,031
Safe boxes deposits 145,966 131,266
Other deposits 155,875 53,492
Creditors 592,756 726,135
Dividends payable 1,245,410 1,295,613
Due to income tax 142,326 128,515
Restricted deposits 40,373 38,418
ECL 428,193 428,193
Prepaid Revenues 597,119 297,264
Lease liabilities (Note 3) 2,926,261 -

Others 722,387 2,494,026
Total 51,510,179 57,242,485

Indirect credit facilities classification based on the Bank'’s internal credit rating is as follows:

31 December

31 December

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 2019 2018
JD JD JD JD JD
Low risk (2-6) 162,687,333 162,687,333 168,873,998
Acceptable risk (7) - - -
High risk (8-10)
Balance as of 31 December 2019 162,687,333 162,687,333 168,873,998
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
NoOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2019

23. Paid-up capital

The paid-up capital of the Bank is JD 150,000,000 divided into 150,000,000 shares at a par value of JD 1
each as of 31 December 2018 and 2019.

24. Share premium

According to general assembly meeting held on 25 April 2019, It was approve to transfer the issuance of
share premium of Arab Jordan Investment Bank — Qatar to the retained earnings.

25. Reserves

Statutory Reserve

The amount accumulated in this account is transferred from the annual net income before tax at 10% during
the year and previous years according to the companies Law, this reserve cannot be distributed to
shareholders.

The restricted reserves are as follows:

Nature of
Reserve Amount restriction
JD
Statutory reserve 33,212,083 According to companies laws

26. Foreign currency translation adjustments

This represents differences resulting from the translation of the net investment in associates and foreign
branches outside of Jordan upon consolidation of the financial statements of the Bank and the movement for
this account is the following:

2019 2018
JD JD
Balance at the beginning of the year (3,596,397) (2,379,220)
Movement during the year 641,168 (1,217,177)
Balance at the end of the year (2,955,229) (3,596,397)
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK
(A PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

NoOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2019

27. Fair value reserve- Net

The details of fair value reserve for financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
according to the international financial reporting standard (9) are as follows:

2019 2018
JD JD
Balance at the beginning of the year (1,891,990) (1,673,812)
Unrealized (losses) (247,553) (218,898)
Realized losses 71,665 720
Balance at the end of the year (2,067,878) (1,891,990)

There are no hedging derivatives.

1

It is restricted to use the negative fair value amounting to JD (2,067,878), including capitalization, distribution,
or amortization of losses or any other use, except to that realized from the sales operations based on the
instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan.

28. Retained earnings

The movement on retained earnings account as the following:

2019 2018
JD JD
Balance at the beginning of the year 17,479,705 17,646,790
Profit for the year 14,871,803 15,506,052
(Losses) from sale of financial assets through
comprehensive income (3,606) (4,799)
Transferred to reserves (1,991,773) (2,168,338)
Transferred of issuance premium 1,418,000 -
Transferred of the subsidiary losses 227,159 -
Distributed dividends to shareholders (13,500,000) (13,500,000)
Balance at the end of the year 18,501,288 17,479,705

- Retained earnings include an amount of JD 521,215 as of 31 December 2019 (JD 540,846 as of 31
December 2018) restricted against deferred tax assets.

- Retained earnings include an amount of JD 1,072,609 restricted balance according to the Central
Bank of Jordan memo No. (10/1/7702) which is related to the early implementation of IFRS 9.
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2019

29. Proposed dividends to the General Assembly

The Board of Directors recommended the distribution of 9% of capital as cash dividends to the shareholders
equivalent to JD 13,500,000 subject to the approval of the General Assembly of Shareholders (during the
year 2019 the Bank distributed 9% of capital as cash dividends to shareholders equivalent to JD13,500,000
for the year 2018).

30. Non - controlling interest

This item represents other shareholders' interest of 50% (minus two shares) as of 31 December 2019 from
the net shareholders' equity of Arab Jordan Investment Bank in Qatar (subsidiary company).

31. Interest income

This item consists of the following:

2019 2018
JD JD

Direct credit facilities:
Individuals (retail):

Loans 9,465,044 8,459,685

Credit cards 1,267,472 1,270,220
Real estate loans 9,356,066 9,218,725
Large companies

Loans 15,351,954 14,337,772

Overdraft 5,480,376 5,108,192
Small and medium companies

Loans 4,905,854 4,887,209

Overdraft 600,210 578,693
Government and public sector 8,417,901 8,730,793
Balances at the Central Bank of Jordan 2,418 8,260
Balances and deposits at banks and financial institutions 5,330,008 4,267,249
Financial assets at amortized cost 37,166,972 33,487,142

97,344,275 90,353,940

Total
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
NoTEs To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2019

32. Interest expense

This item consists of the following:

Deposits from banks and financial institutions
Customers’ deposits:
Current accounts and demand deposits
Saving accounts
Time and notice deposits
Rent interest
Cash margins
Deposits guarantee
Total

33. Net Commissions income

This item consists of the following:

Commissions income:

Direct credit facilities

Indirect credit facilities

Less: Commissions expense
Net commissions income

34. Foreign currencies income

This item consists of the following:

Resulting from trading
Resulting from revaluation
Total

47-

2019 2018
JD JD
23,561,252 18,811,418
1,352,806 1,929,773
1,378,300 1,508,004
26,035,373 21,569,626
21,937 .
525,953 728,588
1,009,968 1,464,604
53,885,589 46,012,013
2019 2018
JD JD
1,754,471 1,830,725
8,304,874 7,979,650
(1,803,590) (1,520,749)
8,255,755 8,289,626
2019 2018
JD JD
3,814,169 3,551,063
80,558 196,432
3,894,727 3,747,495




ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
NoTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2019

35. Loss from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The details of gains on financial assets of fair value through profit and loss in accordance with IFRS (9) are

as follows:
Realized Unrealized
Dividends gains (losses) Total
For the year ended 31 December 2019 JD JD JD JD
Corporate equity shares 6,600 77,785 (231,039) (146,654)
Total 6,600 77,785 (231,039) (146,654)
Realized Unrealized
Dividends gains (losses) Total
JD JD JD JD
For the year ended 31 December 2018
Corporate equity shares . 4,427 (47,995) (43,568)
Total _# 4,427 {47,995) (43,568)

36. Cash dividends on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

This item consists of the following:

Dividends return on local financial assets
Dividends return on foreign financial assets

Total

37. Provision for Impairment

Balances and deposits at banks and financial institutions

Bonds at amortized cost

Direct credit facilities

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Total

2019 2018
JD JD
94,065 268,424
112,436 -
206,501 268,424
2019 2018
JD JD
a 12,888
86,500 36,500
2,171,454 1,375,285
6,000 s
2,263,954 1,424,673
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2019

38. Other income

This item consists of the following:

Income from sale of property and equipment
Gains (Losses) from sales of repossessed assets

Returns from managed portfolios
Commission of salary transfer

Returns from shares trading on behalf of customers

Recorded revenues from pervious provisions

Recovered revenues from bad debts
Revenues from credit cards sponsorship
Other revenues

Total

39. Employees expenses

This item consists of the following:

Salaries, bonuses and employees benefits
Bank’s contribution in social security
Bank’s contribution in saving fund
Employees' life insurance

Medical expenses

Staff training

Travel expenses

Other

Total

-49-

2019 2018
JD JD
4,551 5,530
74,045 (49,367)
15,760 41,273
58,710 55,360
199,411 155,745
- 72,889
553,805 633,715
56,685 56,707
532,882 206,265
1,495,849 1,178,117
2019 2018
JD JD
12,847,540 13,177,585
1,427,468 1,377,113
406,910 389,892
176,416 192,497
758,778 768,239
© 46,433 45,805
195,370 179,146
104,722 102,664
15,963,637 16,232,941




ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK
(A PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2019

40. Other expenses

This item consists of the following: 2019 2018
JD JD

Short — term rent 1,640,013 2,233,286
Stationery and printing 301,080 315,638
Subscriptions 710,769 740,244
Legal and audit fees 356,568 227,926
Telephone, telex, postage and stamps 854,738 895,611
Insurance expenses 184,569 144,046
Maintenance and repair 512,515 608,055
General services 705,988 1,577,522
Swift services 202,063 160,810
Security 288,399 274,088
Donations 236,046 114,683
Board of directors remunerations 55,000 55,000
Board of directors expenses 1,066,088 1,020,975
Foreign currency trading fees 171,390 151,348
Registration and governmental fees 130,820 149,608
Mortgage and insurance fees 608,569 346,411
Consultations 735,883 751,096
Automated clearing (offset) expenses 36,995 8,247
Property tax fees 233,578 268,413
Marketing and advertising expenses 530,985 457,281
Computers and ATMs expenses 1,368,514 1,038,471
Other expenses 1,341,831 887,952
Total 12,272,401 12,426,711

41. Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (Bank's shareholders)

This item consists of the following: 2019 2018

JD JD
Income for the year. 14,871,803 15,506,052
Weighted average number of shares 150,000,000 150,000,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Bank shareholders) 0.099 0.103

The diluted earnings per share for the year is equivalent to the basic earnings per share for the period.
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42. Cash and cash equivalents

This item consists of the following:

2019 2018
JD JD

Cash and balances at the Central Bank of Jordan
maturing within 3 months 129,085,610 121,539,096
Add: balances at banks and other financial
institutions maturing within 3 months 291 478 992 307,559,309
Less: deposits from banks and financial
institutions maturing within 3 months (526,805,241) (417,381,551)
Total (106,240,639) 11,716,854
43. Related Parties Transactions

The Consolidated Financial Statements includes the financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries
include the following:

Ownership Company’s Capital
Company's Name Percentage 2019 2018
JD JD
United Arab Jordan Company for Investment
and Financial Brokerage 100% 2,500,000 2,500,000
Arab Jordan Investment Bank /Qatar LLC 50% + two shares 35,450,000 35,450,000

The Bank has entered into transactions with members of the Board of Directors and executive
management within the normal course of its activities at the commercial interest rates and commissions.

The following is a summary of the transactions with related parties during the year:

Related party Total
Subsidiary Board of directors Management
company members executives Associate company Other” 2019 2018
JD JD JD JD JD JD JD

Statement of Financial Position Items:
Total deposits for related parties 33,922,063 181,694,336 2,394,398 22,807,081 4,398,887 245,216,765 213,693,367
Total Bank deposits with related parties 63,833,607 446,154 2 23,238,028 - 87,617,789 64,130,884
Loans and credit facilities
granted to related parties - - 717,474 - 2,667,725 3,385,199 3,229,398
Off-Statement of Financial Position
ltems:
Letter of credit and guarantee 16,857,618 2 = = - 16,857,618 16,211,107
Managed account 7,079,490 . 3 - - 7,079,490 8,505,485
Statement of Income Iltems:
Credit interest and commission 810,883 = 34,554 306,179 156,847 1,308,463 557,776
Debit interest and commission 1,507,801 3,042,526 111,717 312,847 292,899 5,267,790 4,477,713

* This item represents employees’ deposits and facilities for other than Board of Directors and executive
management.

- Revenues and expenses balances and transactions between the Bank and the subsidiaries are
eliminated.

- Interest expense rates ranges from 0% - 7.25% (current accounts included).
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- Interest revenue rates ranges from 1.75% - 7%.

- All credit facilities granted to related parties are considered performing and consequently no related
provisions have been booked.

The following is a summary of the benefits (salaries and remunerations plus other benefits) of the executive
management of the Bank:

2019 2018

JD JD
Salaries, remunerations and other benefits 1,581,508 1,770,415
Travel and transportation 31,673 23,443
Total 1,613,181 1,793,858

44. Risk management

Risk is an integral part of the Bank's operations, the general framework of the Risk Management Department
in the bank is to identify understand and evaluate risks associated with the Bank's operations, The
Department also ensures that risk is maintained within approved and accepted limits and that the necessary
measures are taken to reduce risk and attain a balance between risks and rewards.

The Risk Department's policies are developed in order to identify analyze control and place caps on risk,
Moreover risk is also monitored through the Bank's risk database system.

The Bank periodically reviews the policies and procedures associated with the Risk Department in order to
incorporate new market developments and practices best suited to the Bank's operations.

The Risk Management Department in the Bank is responsible for managing risk through close alignment of
the policies and procedures authorized by the Bank's Board of Directors, Furthermore the Risk Committee
which is emerged from the Board of Directors reviews the said department's activities and continually issues
reports to the Board of Directors disclosing whether the risk is maintained according to the Bank's policies
and approved and accepted risk levels.

The Assets and Liabilities Management Committee and Investment Committee also partake in risk
management within the Bank. In addition all of the Bank's work centers are responsible for identifying the
risks associated with their activities, They also set the necessary and appropriate risk controls; the most
important risks are credit risk liquidity risk operation risk and market risk which also includes interest rate risk
and currency risk.

The risk management framework comprises risk appetites statement, which is approved by the Board of
Directors, and includes the accept-able risk limits and levels of risk tolerance. In addition, part of the risk
framework is the stress testing g which is performed on the portfolio level to measure the extent of the Banks
capability to withstand any shocks and high risks arising from applying the IFRS (9) standard.

Reports regarding the results of these tests to the risk management committee are submitted on a regular
basis to assess their impact on capital and profits, and accordingly a periodic review is done to confirm the
compatibility of the current applied with the reality.

Credit Risk
Credit risk arises from the probable default or inability of the borrower or third party to fulfil its obligations to
the Bank Moreover, this risk is one of the most important risks the Bank faces during the conduct of its
activities, Therefore the Bank manages credit risk continuously this risk relates to items such as loans bonds
and activity investments in debt instruments in addition to credit risk related to off- statement of financial
position items such as unutilized loans guarantees and documentary credits.
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Measurement of Credit Risk:

1. Debt Instruments
The external rating issued by the International Rating Institutions such as (Standard and Poor) and (Moody'’s)
or the like is used in managing exposure to credit risk relating to debt instruments.

This rating is within specific categories and as instructed by the regulatory authorities in the countries where
the bank has its branches or subsidiaries.

2. Control on Risk Ceilings and Credit Risk Mitigation Policies

The Bank manages credit ceilings and controls the credit concentrations risks on the customers’ levels
(individual or corporate) in addition to managing and controlling the exposure to credit risk for each sector or
geographical area.

The Bank determines the accepted credit risk levels through installing ceilings for the acceptable risks relating
to one borrower or a group of borrowers and for each sector or geographical area.

These risks are continuously controlled and are subject to annual/ periodic reviews in addition to controlling
the actual exposure against the risk ceilings daily.

Credit Risk Mitigation Methods

The Bank adopts several methods and practices to mitigate credit risk such as obtaining guarantees
according to acceptable standards.

The most prevalent guarantees against loans and credit facilities are the following:
- Real estate mortgages.
- Mortgages of financial instruments such as shares.
- Bank guarantees.

Cash Collaterals.

- Government guarantees.

Moreover, the Bank adopts the following methods to improve the quality of credit and mitigate risks:

- A system of three approvals for granting a credit.

- Credit approval authority that varies from one management level to another depending on the
volume of the customer's portfolio extent of exposure maturity and customer's risk degree.

- Complete segregation between credit management departments (business) credit control and
analysis departments.
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Second: quantitative disclasures:

(44/A) credit risk

1-A Exposure to credit risks (after provision for impairment and interest in suspense and before collaterals

and any other risk decreasing factors).

2019 2018
JD JD

Statement of Financial Position items:
Cash and balances at Central Bank of Jordan 110,291,280 101,095,229
Balances at banks and financial institutions - Net 291,440,677 307,520,994
Deposits at banks and financial Institutions - Net 24,845 110 15,877,685
Credit Facilities- Net:
Individual 123,594,406 99,640,228
Real-estate loans 100,567,052 098,130,274
Large companies 425,407,217 361,988,141
Small and medium companies 26,891,112 24 167,233
Government & public sector 139,013,136 168,768,693
Bonds and Treasury Bills:
Within financial assets at amortized Cost- net 711,618,433 688,023,173
Financial assets through other comprehensive income 1,163,185 -
Other assets 18,134,721 17,932,921

Total
Contingent liabilities:

1,972,966,329

1,883,144,571

Letters of guarantee 87,435,311 80,618,073
Letters of credit 25,314,162 48,313,862
Acceptances 49,937,860 39,942 063
Un-utilized facilities 77,140,463 78,070,287

_ 239,827,796 246,944,285
Total 2,212,794,125 2,130,088,856

The Bank obtains cash and in-kind collaterals representing real estates and shares to mitigate credit risks to
which the Bank might be exposed.

The above schedule represents the Bank's maximum exposure to credit risk as of 31 December 2019 and
2018 without taking into consideration guarantees and other credit risk mitigation factors.
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(A PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
NoTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2019

3. The lollowing table breaks down the fair value of the collaterals hcld as security for credit facilities:

31 December 2019
Low risk
Acceptable risk
Watch list

Non- performing :
Substandard grade
Doubtful

Loss

Total

As :

Cash margins
Governmental guarantees
Real estate

Listed shares
Vehicles and equipment

Total

31 December 2018
Low risk
Acceptabie risk
Watch list

Non- performing:
Substandard grade
Doubtful

Loss

Total

As:

Cash margins
Governmental guarantees
Real estate

Listed shares
Vehicles and equipment

Total

Small and
Large medium Government and
Individual Housing loans companies companies public sector Total
JD JD JD JD JD JD

9,301,454 2,688,463 61,118,427 685,743 114,251,269 188,045,356
86,735,203 70,949,519 276,642,816 20,577,872 24,761,867 479,667,277
13,520 3,131,426 550,000 1,152,614 - 4,847,560
- 1,164,700 - - g 1,164,700
- 620,472 - 96,257 - 716,729
721,937 2,174,856 4,040,000 1,452,363 - 8,389,156
96,772,114 80,729,436 342,351,243 23,964,849 139,013,136 682,830,778
9,301,454 723,723 2,488,427 685,743 - 13,199,347
- 1,964,740 58,630,000 - 139,013,136 199,607,876
82,270,049 78,040,973 256,572,272 23,279,106 - 440,162,400
4,895,370 - 22,297,668 - - 27,193,038
305,241 - 2,362,876 - - 2,668,117
96,772,114 80,729,436 342,351,243 23,964,849 139,013,136 682,830,778
7,462,173 2,845,179 2,953,015 347,874 143,666,003 157,274,244
70,893,126 68,712,656 272,013,588 16,652,617 25,102,690 453,374,677
21,076 3,614,652 550,000 1,138,140 - 5,323,868
- 279,908 - - - 279,908
- 699,923 4,040,000 185,013 - 4,924 936
1,294,892 2,993,589 - 4,909,651 - 9,198,132
79,671,267 79,145,907 279,556,603 23,233,295 168,768,693 630,375,765
7,462,173 609,361 2,953,015 347,874 - 11,372,423
- 2,235,818 - - 168,768,693 171,004,511
63,981,214 76,300,728 248,365,731 22,669,605 - 411,317,278
7,869,256 - 25,874,981 215,816 - 33,960,053
358,624 - 2,362,876 - - 2,721,500
79,671,267 79,145,907 279,556,603 23,233,295 168,768,693 630,375,765
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK
(A PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
NOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3-B-3 Total reclassified exposures

Stage 2 Stage 3 -
Total Total Total Reclassified
exposure Reclassified exposure Reclassified reclassified exposures
ltem amount exposures amount exposures  exposures %
Direct credit facilities 13,128,371 6,542,664 8,363,501 2,314,091 8,856,755 41,21%
Financial assets at
. - - 400,000 350,000 350,000 87,50%
amortized cost
3-B-4 ECL for reclassified facilities
_ Reclassified exposures ECL for reclassified exposures
Reclassified Reclassified Total
exposures exposures reclassified Stage 2 Stage 3
Iltem Stage 2 Stage 3_ exposures individual individual Total -
Direct credit facilities 6,542,664 2,314,091 8,856,755 445,060 34,008 479,068
Financial assets at
amortized cost 350,000 350,000 - 50,000 50,000

Rescheduled loans:

These represent loans classified previously as non-performing and reclassified as performing but taken out
therefrom according to proper scheduling and classified as watch list loans they amounted to JD 2,398,432

for the current year (JD 2,408,696 for the previous year).

The balance of the rescheduled loans represents the loans which were rescheduled either still classified as

watch list or transferred to performing.

Restructured loans:

Restructuring means to rearrange facilities instalments or by increasing their duration postpone some
instalments or increase the grace period...etc, they are classified as a watch-list debt and it amounted to JD
33,970,239 for the current year (JD 107,231,075 for the previous year-end).
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4. Bills bonds and debentures

The table below shows the classification of bills bonds and debentures according to external rating agencies:

Risk rating class

Rating agency

Included in assets at
amortized cost

JD
Government guaranteed bonds Moody’s 679,034,051
Government guaranteed bonds B1 Moody'’s 6,485,884
Foreign governmental bonds Aa3 Moody's 2,128,974
Foreign governmental bonds BBB - Moody’s 697,171
Foreign governmental bonds B2 Moody’s 1,589,752
Foreign governmental bonds Baa2 Moody’s 706,292
Foreign governmental bonds Baa3 Moody'’s 709,605
Companies Bond A Moody'’s 706,904
Companies Bond A1 Moody's 1,418,033
Companies Bond Baf1 Moody's 1,415,985
Companies Bond Ba2 Moody's 700,443
Companies Bond Baa2 Moody’s 2,494 731
Companies Bond Baa3 Moody's 5,896,733
Companies Bond without classification Moody's 7,633,875
Total 711,618,433
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
NoTes To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2019

44/B Market risks:

Market risk is the risk of the fluctuation in the fair value or cash flows of financial instruments due to
changes in market prices such as interest rates, currency rates and stock prices. The risks subject
to this requirement are foreign currency, risk price risk, commodity risk and market risks arise due
to open positions for interest rate, foreign currency exchange rate, investment rate and share prices.
These risks are controlled according to predetermined policies and procedures and through
specialized committees and work centers.

Sensitivity analysis is based on estimating the loss risk in fair value due to changes in interest rate
and exchange rate. Moreover, fair value is calculated according to the current value of future cash
flows that will be affected by price changes.

Interest rate risks

Interest rate risk arises from the probable impact of changes in interest rates on the value of other
financial assets. The Bank is exposed to the risk of interest rates due to a mismatch or a gap in the
amounts of assets and liabilities according to the various time limits or review of interest rates in a
certain period. Moreover, the Bank manages these risks through reviewing the interest rates on
assets and liabilities based on the risk management strategy. The Bank will study all the factors that
have an effect on the interest rates whether they are local regional or global in addition to studying
the interest rate gap and their future expectations to determine the degree of risk in the short and
long term so as to be able to put a suitable future plan and make the right decisions such as
amending the maturity date and repricing the deposits and loans and the purchase and sale of the
financial investments.

1-Interest rate risks

Sensitivity Analysis 2019

Sensitivity of

Change (increase) Sensitivity of interest shareholders'
Currency in interest rate (%) revenue profit and (loss) equity
JD JD
US Dollar 1 (388,663) -
Euro 1 (339,485) -
British Pound 1 (3,459) -
Japanese Yen 1 3 -
Others 1 543,913 -
Sensitivity of
Change (increase) Sensitivity of interest shareholders'
Currency in interest rate (%) revenue profit and (loss) equity
JD JD
US Dollar 1 388,663 -
Euro 1 339,485 -
British Pound 1 3,459 -
Japanese Yen 1 (3) -
Others 1 (543,913) -
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Sensitivity Analysis 2018

Currency

US Doliar
Euro

British Pound
Japanese Yen
Others

Currency

US Dollar
Euro
British Pound

Japanese Yen
Others

2. Foreign currencies risk

Change (increase) Sensitivity of interest

Sensitivity of
shareholders'

in interest rate (%) revenue profit and (loss) equity
JD JD
1 (635,716) -
1 (150,802) -
1 (41,720) -
1 (2) -
1 187,983 -

Change (increase) Sensitivity of interest

Sensitivity of
shareholders'

in interest rate (%) revenue profit and (loss) equity
JD JD
1 535,716 -
1 150,802 -
1 41,720 -
1 2 -
1 (187,983) -

This is the risk that results from the changes in foreign exchange rates with potential impact on the
Bank's assets and liabilities in foreign currencies The Bank prepares a sensitivity analysis to monitor
the changes in exchange rates at (+ 5%) of net profits and losses.

Sensitivity analysis 2019

Sensitivity of
Change in currency Effect on profits and shareholders'
Currency exchange rate (%) losses equity
JD JD
Euro 5 1,272 -
British Pound 5 51,735 982,625
Japanese Yen 5 2,346 -
Other currencies 5 2,230,003 -

Sensitivity analysis 2018

Change in currency Effect on profits and

Sensitivity of
shareholders’

Currency exchange rate (%) losses equity
JD JD
Euro 5 1,694 E
British Pound 5 (14,037) (935,161)
Japanese Yen 5 840 -
Other currencies 5 717,059 -

In case the decrease in the currency exchange rate amounts to 5% the same financial effect will

result with an opposite sign.
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3. Shares prices risks

Is the risk arising from changes in the prices of stocks within the portfolio of financial assets at fair
value through the statement of income and comprehensive income. The Bank manages the risks of
stock prices by analysing value at losses.

Sensitivity analysis 2019

Change in Effect on profit Effect on
Indicator equity prices (%) and losses shareholders
JD JD
Amman Stock Exchange 5 60,160 628,982
Qatar Stock Exchange 5 - 23,729
Sensitivity Analysis 2018
Change in Effect on profit Effect on
Indicator equity prices (%) and losses shareholders
JD JD
Amman Stock Exchange 5 13,162 635,184
Qatar Stock Exchange 5 - 20,029

If the stock exchanges indicator decreases by the same percentage, the same financial effect will
arise but with an opposite sign.
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2019

(44/C) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the Bank’s inability to provide the necessary funding to cover its obligations
at the due date, Liquidity risk is managed through the following:

Funding requirements are managed through daily oversight of future cash flows to ensure the
possibility of meeting them and the Bank maintains a presence in the market of cash that allows the
bank to achieve it.

Holding highly marketable assets that can be easily liquidated to meet any unexpected liquidity
requirements.

Monitoring the liquidity ratios according to the internal requirements and the requirements of the
regulatory authorities.

Managing concentrations in assets / liabilities and their maturities.

Maintaining a portion of customers’ deposits as a cash reserve at the Central Bank of Jordan; this
reserve cannot be disposed of except for certain conditions as specified by the Central Bank of
Jordan.

Liquidity is measured on the basis of normal and emergency conditions, this includes analyzing the
remaining period of the contractual maturity and financial assets on the basis of the expected
recoverability.

The treasurer is in charge of controlling the liquidity of the Bank taking into consideration loans and
any related commitments letters of credit and guarantees.

Sources of funds

The Bank diversifies its funding sources according to geographical areas, currencies customers, and
products in order to achieve financial flexibility and reduce funding costs, It also endeavors to
maintain stable and reliable funding sources, Moreover the Bank has a large customer base
including individual customers companies and corporations.
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
NOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2019

46. Capital Management:

The Bank seeks to achieve the following goals:

- Compliance with the Central Bank of Jordan requirements relating to share
capital.

- Maintaining the ability to continue as a going concern.

- Maintaining a strong capital base for supporting the expansion and development
of the Bank's activities.

Capital adequacy is monitored and reviewed by the Bank's management moreover the
Bank provides the Central Bank of Jordan with quarterly reports on the adequacy of its
capital.

According to the Central Bank of Jordan instructions the minimum requirements for the
capital adequacy ratio is 12%. Moreover, banks are classified into five categories the
best one having an average capital adequacy ratio equal to or more than 14%
Additionally the Bank's capital adequacy ratio is 15.38% as of 31 December 2019
(15.90% as of 31 December 2018).
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK
(A PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2019

The schedule below shows capital components total risk weighted assets and capital
adequacy ratio according to the Central Bank of Jordan instructions in accordance with

Basel Il 2019 Committee regulations:

Primary capital according to bank’s
management requirements

Paid-up capital

Retained Earnings

Profit for the year after tax and deducting
expected distributions

Other Comprehensive income items:
Cumulative change in fair value

Foreign currency translation adjustments
Share Issuance Premium

Statutory Reserve

Authorized minority rights

Total Ordinary Share Capital

Total regulatory Adjustments (deductions
from capital)

Goodwill and Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets resulting from provisions of
credit facilities

Investment in Bank’s Capital and financial
institutions and insurance companies Outside
the scope of regulatory consolidation and
where the bank owns more than 10%

Net Ordinary Shareholders

Additional Capital

Total primary Capital
Secondary Capital

General banking risk reserve
Provision required against credit facilities/
credit compensation in stage 1
Total Stable Capital

Net stable capital

Total regulatory capital
Total risk weighted assets
Capital adequacy ratio %
Primary capital ratio %

47. Accounts managed on behalf of customers

2019

JD

In Thousands

2018

JD

In Thousands

150,000 150,000
5,001 3,980
(2,068) (1,892)
(2,955) (3,596)
- 1,418
33,212 31,447
7,657 6,353
190,847 187,710
(1,607) (694)
(521) (541)
(1,815) (364)
186,904 186,111
186,904 186,111
3,531 3,425
3,531 3,425
3,531 3,425
190,435 189,536
1,238,480 1,192,262
15.38% 15.90%
15.09% 15.61%

This item represents the accounts managed by the Bank on behalf of its customers
but are not considered part of the bank's assets and its balances as of 31 December
2019 was JD 44,175,416 (JD 43,199,818 as of 31 December 2018), The fees and
commissions on such accounts are stated in the consolidated statement of Income.
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK
(A PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

NOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2019

48. Assets and Liabilities maturity analysis:

The following table analyzes assets and liabilities according to the expected period of

their recoverability or settlement:

31 December 2019

Assets:

Cash and balances at Central Bank of Jordan
Balances at banks and financial institutions - net
Deposits at banks and financial institutions- net
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through Profit or Loss
Direct Credit facilities- Net

Financial assets at amortized cost

Investments in associate company

Property and equipment-Net

Intangible assets-Net

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities:

Banks and financial institutions’ deposits
Customers' deposits

Borrowed money from Central Bank of Jordan
Cash margins

Sundry provisions

Income tax provision

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net

-80-

Up to 1 year Over 1 year Total
JD JD JD
129,085,610 - 129,085,610
291,440,677 - 291,440,677
24845110 - 24 845,110
20,059,841 - 20,059,841
1,203,192 - 1,203,192
340,318,998 475,153,925 815,472,923
694,739,677 16,878,756 711,618,433
- 20,687,223 20,687,223
- 76,478,738 76,478,738
- 1,606,866 1,606,866
- 521,215 521,215
- 39,036,563 39,036,563
1,601,693,105 630,363,286 2,132,056,391
529,641,241 90,000,000 619,641,241
801,756,460 290,529,879 1,092,286,339
100,000,000 4,457,503 104,457,503
32,112,128 8,183,805 40,295,933
- 677,572 677,572
6,674,294 660,584 7,334,878
29,016,348 22,493,831 51,510,179
1,499,200,471 417,003,174 1,916,203,645
2492634 213,360,112 215,852,746




ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK
(A PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

NOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 DECEMBER 2019

31 December 2018

Assets:

Cash and balances at Centrai Bank of Jordan
Balances at banks and financial institutions - net
Deposits at banks and financial institutions- net
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through Profit or Loss
Direct Credit facilities- Net

Financial assets at amortized cost

Investments in associate company

Property and equipment-Net

Intangible assets-Net

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities:

Banks and financial institutions’ deposits
Customers' deposits

Borrowed money from Central Bank of Jordan
Cash margins

Sundry provisions

Income tax provision

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Net

-81-

Up to 1 year Over 1 year Total
JD JD JD

121,539,096 - 121,539,096
307,520,994 - 307,520,994
15,877,685 - 15,877,685
- 15,506,988 15,506,988
263,244 - 263,244
348,449,892 404,244 677 752,694,569
662,766,363 25,256,810 688,023,173
- 19,011,340 19,011,340
- 74,301,592 74,301,592
- 694,005 694,005
- 540,846 540,846
- 37,116,887 37,116,887
1,456,417,274 576,673,145 2,033,090,419
417,381,551 120,000,000 537,381,551
812,085,234 218,476,813  1,030,562,047
145,245,500 796,310 146,041,810
29,632,207 9,359,086 38,991,293
- 606,874 606,874
6,205,718 660,438 6,866,156
38,515,028 18,727,457 57,242 485
1,449,065,238 368,626,978 1,817,692,216
208,046,167 215,398,203

7,352,036
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK

(A PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
NOTES To CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2019

50. Commitments and contingent liabilitiss (Off-Statement of Financial Position)

A. Contingent liabilities:

2019 2018
JD JD

Letters of credit
Export 22,086,217 47,006,472
Import (backed) 3,227,945 1,307,390
Import (not backed) 59,109,943 64,444,035
Acceptance
Export / letter of credit 49,937,860 39,942,063
Export / policies 12,423,043 8,063,929
Import (not backed) 9,712,117 7,790,234
Letters of guarantee
Payments 32,142,129 27,955,736
Performance 34,056,466 29,453,390
Other 21,236,716 23,208,947
Forward contracts 29,230,480 27,657,000
Un-utilized facilities 77,140,463 78,070,287
Total 350,303,379 354,899,483

Operating lease contracts in Arab Jordan Investment Bank- Qatar (subsidiary) amounted to
JD 119,776 as of 31 December 2019 (JD 119,776 as of 31 December 2018).

B. There are no contractual commitments to purchase fixed assets or constructional
contracts.

C. There are no guarantees provided against contractual obligations.
D. Operating and finance lease contracts.

The minimum capital lease payment is as follows:

2019 2018
JD JD
Within one year 119,776 119,776
Total 119,776 119,776

51. Lawsuits against the Bank

The lawsuits against the Bank amounted to JD 4,928,180 as of 31 December 2019 (6,737,335
as of 31 December 2018) which represents lawsuits that clients have raised to respond to
lawsuits that the Bank has raised against them in the opinion of the Bank's lawyer the Bank
will not incur any significant amounts against these lawsuits except for the booked provision
which amounted to JD 162,652 as of 31 December 2019. Moreover, the amounts paid by the
Bank against concluded or settled lawsuits are taken to the statement of income upon
payment.
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK
(A PuBLIC SHAREHOLDING LIMITED COMPANY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2019

52. New International Financial Reporting Standards and its explanations and issued
amendments and not implemented vet

The standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective, up to the date of
issuance of the Bank'’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Bank intends to adopt
these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

I[FRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts covering the recognition
and measurement and presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts and replaces IFRS
4 -Insurance Contracts. The standard applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e. life, non-
life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities that issue them, as
well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary participation
features. The standard general model is supplemented by the variable fee approach and the
premium allocation approach.

The new standard will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
with comparative figures required. Early application is permitted provided that the entity also
applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before the date it first applies IFRS 17. This standard is not
applicable to the Bank.

Amendments to IFRS 3: Definition of a Business

The IASB issued amendments to the definition of a business in IFRS 3 Business Combinations
to help entities determine whether an acquired set of activities and assets is a business or not.
They clarify the minimum requirements for a business, remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of replacing any missing elements, add guidance to help
entities assess whether an acquired process is substantive, narrow the definitions of a
business and of outputs, and introduce an optional fair value concentration test.

Since the amendments apply prospectively to transactions or other events that occur on or
after the date of first application, the Bank will not be affected by these amendments on the
date of transition.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of “Material”

The IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to align the definition of
‘material’ across the standards and to clarify certain aspects of the definition. The new
definition states that, ’Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general-purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial
information about a specific reporting entity.” The amendments to the definition of material is
not expected to have a significant impact on the Bank’s consolidated financial statements.
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ARAB JORDAN INVESTMENT BANK
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Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 includes a number of
reliefs, which apply to all hedging relationships that are directly affected by interest rate
benchmark reform. A hedging relationship is affected if the reform gives rise to uncertainties
about the timing and or amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or the
hedging instrument. As a result of interest rate benchmark reform, there may be uncertainties
about the timing and or amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item or the
hedging instrument during the period before the replacement of an existing interest rate
benchmark with an alternative risk-free interest rate (an RFR). This may lead to uncertainty
whether a forecast transaction is highly probable and whether prospectively the hedging
relationship is expected to be highly effective.

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to continue during
the period of uncertainty before the replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with
an alternative risk-free interest rate (an “RFR”). The effective date of the amendments is for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020, with early application permitted. The
requirements must be applied retrospectively. However, any hedge relationships that have
previously been de-designated cannot be reinstated upon application, nor can any hedge
relationships be designated with the benefit of hindsight.

With phase one completed, the IASB is now shifting its focus to consider those issues that
could affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with an
RFR. This is referred to as phase two of the IASB’s project. The Bank has not early adopted
the amendments and has concluded that the uncertainty arising from IBOR reform is not
affecting its hedge relationships to the extent that the hedge relationships need to be
discontinued.
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